
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY APRIL 18, 2023 
 
 
7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 
   
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Minutes: 
 

a. February 21, 2023, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 
b. April 4, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes (For Information Only) 

  
4. PUBLIC HEARING: Seasonal Investments, LLC, (Applicant) and 1980 County Road 90 

LLC (Owner) request that the City consider the following action for the property located at 
1980 County Road 90, Independence, MN (PID No. 23-118-24-32-0011): 
 

a. Site plan review to allow the proposed development of two new storage buildings 
on the subject property.  
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING:  Jeffrey Pitzenberger (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City 
consider the following actions for the property located at 4082 Woodhill Drive, 
Independence, MN (PID No. 01-118-24-34-0012): 
 

a. A conditional use permit to allow an attached accessory dwelling unit. 
 

6. Open/Misc. 
 
7. Adjourn. 



 
 

City of Independence  1 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE PLANNING COMMISSION  
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2023, AT 7:30 PM 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a work session of the Independence Planning Commission was 
called to order by Chair Gardner at 7:30 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL:	

 
PRESENT: Commissioners Gardner (Chair), Dumas, Volkenant, Thompson, and Usset. 
ABSENT: Story and Tearse. 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas. 
VISITORS: See Sign-In Sheet 

 
 
3. Approval of Minutes: 

 
a. November 15, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 
b. January 17, 2023, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 
c. February 9, 2022, City Council Meeting Minutes (For Information Only) 

 

Motion by Thompson, seconded by Gardner to approve the minutes.   
Ayes: Gardner, Dumas, Volkenant, Thompson, and Usset. Nays: None. Absent: Story and 
Tearse. Abstain: None. Motion Approved. 5-0 
 

4. Continued from January 17, 2023, Meeting. William Stoddard (Applicant) and John Zeglin 
(Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions for the property located at 9285 US 
Hwy 12, Independence, MN (PID No. 18-118-24-21-0001): 

 
a. A comprehensive plan amendment to allow a portion of the property to be re-guided to the 

Urban Commercial - UC zoning district. A portion of the property is already guided Urban 
Commercial. 

 
b. Rezoning of a portion of the property from AG-Agriculture to UC-Urban 

Commercial. 
 

c. Conditional Use Permit to allow a planned unit commercial development on the subject 
property. The proposed development would include office warehouse and private garage 
condominium buildings. 

 
d. Site Plan Review to allow the proposed development. 

 
e. Preliminary Plat to allow the subdivision of the property into eight (8) residential lots and 

1



 
 

City of Independence  2 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

associated lots to allow the proposed commercial development.  
 

Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the south side of Highway 12 and west side of Nelson Rd. The 
property has frontage on both roads and is comprised primarily of agriculture land, 
woodlands,and wetlands. There is an existing home and several detached accessory 
structures on the subject property. 

 
Property Information: 9285 Highway 12 
Zoning: Agriculture 
Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture/Urban Commercial 
Acreage: ~58 acres 

 
UPDATE: 
The City reviewed the proposed development in January 2023 and provided feedback and 
comments to the developer and staff. Following the meeting, the City has worked with the 
developer to make revisions to the plans in order to address comments provided by the City 
and its consultants (see attached review letters and applicant responses attached to this report). 
In addition, the City has been working with MNDOT to identify an acceptable access plan. 
The City has also prepared the parameters for the PUD that would allow for the subject 
development. The following summary points detail the changes, outstanding comments and 
general considerations that should be noted by the Planning Commission: 

 
• One of the primary issues that was identified during the initial review of this projects 

relates to the proposed access to the site. The City noted that it strongly discourages 
any commercial connection to Nelson Rd. To support this standing, the City noted that 
the site development standards contain the following prohibition: 

 
530.11. - Lot standards. 

 
Subd. 10. Access streets. Streets servicing a commercial-light industrial area 
must have direct access to a collector street or higher-capacity street. No street 
servicing commercial-light industrial establishments may have access to local 
residential streets nor may business-oriented traffic be routed or directed to local 
residential streets. 

 
The City discussed the possibility of providing for a future frontage road across the 
property to provide for a future east/west connection to County Line Road. The 
applicant is agreeable to providing this future ROW and has revised the drawings to 
provide for this future access. The City met with MNDOT and offered that this future 
ROW would be acquired by the City and allow for a future frontage road. This would 
likely allow Nelson Road residents to access the future roundabout at County Line 
Road and Highway 12 without having to go onto Highway 12.  Following additional 
review by MNDOT, they have agreed to allow the proposed right in/right out as a 
temporary access that would need to be removed at the time a frontage road can be 
constructed to County Line Rd. However, MNDOT also wants a full frontage road 
connection made to Nelson Road within the within the right of way shown on the 
revised plans. This is not in keeping with the City’s ordinances and increases the 

2



 
 

City of Independence  3 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

number of turning movements made from west bound Highway 12 onto Nelson Road 
(left turn off of Highway 12 onto Nelson Road from westbound Highway 12 lane). This 
turning movement is considered the most dangerous based on crash data. 

 
Staff has asked to meet with MNDOT again relating to this issue noting the 
aforementioned points. Staff is seeking additional discussion from Planning 
Commission relating to the access issue. Staff has considered additional solutions 
should MNDOT not agree to allow the access as proposed. This would include looking 
at a one-way street option (westbound traffic only) that would allow a right turn only 
off of Nelson Road and into the commercial development. 

 

• Based on the proposed revisions, the applicant has reduced the number of residential 
properties to seven from eight. This reduction will allow for the future frontage road 
right of way and eliminate the lot directly adjacent to Highway 12. 
 

• The applicant has revised the plans to add additional detail to the proposed 10,000 SF 
commercial building.  The City has reviewed the updated site plan related information 
and generally finds that it meets applicable standards. The City reviewed parking 
relating to the proposed commercial and made the following findings: 

 
o 1 space per 250 SF (10,600 - 10.6 x 4 = 43 parking spaces) 

43 parking spaces required 
49 parking spaces provided 

 
• The applicant has provided photometric and lighting plans for the proposed 

development. The lighting plans have been reviewed by the City and found to meet all 
applicable requirements. The lights proposed by the applicant are cut-off type fixtures 
that will have limited visibility outside of the proposed development. One exception is 
with the proposed commercial building. The City will want to see light poles within the 
proposed parking lot that will provide adequate light levels to the entire parking area. 

 
• The applicant has provided architectural plans and building elevations for all buildings 

within the proposed development. The City notes that the architectural standards 
adopted for the Urban Commercial zoning district state the following: 

 

Subd. 3. Design standards. 

(a) Height. The maximum height of all buildings must not exceed the lesser of 2½ stories or 35 feet. 
This height limitation does not apply to farm buildings, grain elevators, silos, windmills, elevator 
legs, cooling towers, water towers, chimneys and smokestacks, church spires, or electric 
transmission lines. 

(b) Allowed materials for principal buildings. Principal commercial or industrial buildings in the 
commercial/industrial zoning district shall use the following materials on their exterior 
facades: 

(1) Brick; 

(2) Natural stone or stone veneers; 

3



 
 

City of Independence  4 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

(3) Decorative concrete block (color impregnated with a split faced, robbed, or textured surface; 

(4) Glass curtain wall panels; 

(5) Stucco or synthetic stucco; 

(6) Exterior insulation and finish systems (EIFS). 

(c) All exterior vertical surfaces must be treated as a front and have an equally attractive or same fascia 
on all sides of the structure. 

(d) Mechanical protrusions. All necessary mechanical protrusions visible to the exterior must be 
screened or painted in a manner so they are not visually obvious and are compatible with the 
surrounding development. Satisfaction of this requirement must be demonstrated by the screening 
of the equipment in such a manner that it is not visible from a point six feet above any common 
property line or street right-of-way. Screening must consist of either a parapet wall along the roof's 
edge or by an opaque screen constructed of the same material as the building's primary vertical 
exposed exterior finish. The zoning administrator may determine that the equipment may be 
painted a neutral earth tone color, or color deemed similar by the zoning administrator or must be 
designed to be compatible with the architectural treatment of the principal building, which will 
satisfy the screening requirement. All mechanical protrusions must be highlighted on the site plan. 

(Added, Ord. No. 2006-09) 
 

Subd. 4. New materials. The city recognizes that technologies change and new products are continually available 
which may not be listed as allowed under these building design requirements. If an applicant wishes to 
utilize a non-listed material, an application to amend the zoning code text must be submitted per the 
requirements of city Code. In reviewing such an application to consider including a new material to the list 
of allowed materials in subdivision 3(b), the city will consider the following: 

(a) Is the proposed material of sufficient quality to ensure on-going maintenance will not be of 
concern (applicant should provide detailed information on the proposed product and its history 
of use); 

(b) Will the style, color, and appearance of the proposed product integrate with 
adjacent commercial/industrial properties and other materials currently allowed 
within the commercial/industrial zoning district; 

(c) Will the style, color, and appearance of the proposed product be acceptable in cases when visible 
from residential units on adjacent properties. 

 
• The applicant is proposing to construct the buildings using primarily metal paneling 

(see illustrative elevation below). The City will request examples of the proposed 
materials. The proposed architecture is consistent throughout the development, 
utilizes significant amounts of glass and glazed surfaces and appears to meet the 
design intent of the ordinance. Staff will be seeking additional discussion and 
direction from Planning Commission relating to the proposed building materials and 
architecture. 

 
• The applicant does not currently identify and mechanical equipment on the plans. All 

mechanical equipment will need to be shown and if proposed to be on the exterior of 
the building or roof, will need to be screened from view. 

 
• A preliminary plat has now been submitted. The PP will need to updated to reflect 

the City’s standard 10’ perimeter drainage and utility easements and provide all lot 
dimensions, easements and similar information. 

4



 
 

City of Independence  5 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

 
• The City has reviewed the plans with the Delano Fire Chief. The applicant has 

provided an exhibit (attached to this report) which provides fire truck simulated 
turning movements which verify fire apparatus access. The City will want to further 
define no parking areas (using signage and striping) within the auto condo and 
commercial development areas. This will be further detailed as the project progresses. 

 
• The applicant has provided an updated landscape plan for the proposed development. 

The plan provides a high level of landscaping around the commercial building, entrance 
drives and within the proposed lifestyle garage condos. The City does believe that 
additional landscaping screening may be warranted in several locations shown below. 

 
• The City has prepared a draft of the Planned Development standards that would apply 

to the commercial development. It should be noted that the residential lots will be 
subject to the requirements of the AG-Agriculture physical and lot standards. The City 
will need to waive the minimum lot width for requirement for Lots 5, 6 and 7. The 
following Planned Development Standards would be incorporated in the Planned 
Development Agreement: 

 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 

(A) Permitted uses. Permitted uses of land or buildings, as hereinafter listed, shall be 
permitted in the Planned Development under the conditions specified. No building 
or lot shall be devoted to any use other than a use permitted hereunder: 

 
(1) Any use not expressly permitted but consistent with the intent of the district which, 

by approval of the city council, shall be permitted except for eating and drinking 
establishments, coffee shops and similar food service businesses which shall not be 
permitted. 

 
(2) Office and retail sales. 

 
(3) Contractor and construction supply shops conducted wholly within an 

enclosed building, including but not limited to plumbing, HVAC, roofing and 
electrical with a principle building or office. 

 
(4) Light manufacturing, production, processing, assembly, fabricating, 

servicing and repairing of materials, goods or products with no outdoor 
storage. 

 
(5) Auto Condos in accordance with the following provisions: 

 
i. Auto Condos shall be for the private storage and private leisure 

by the owner(s) of such space. No commercial activities shall be 
permitted in the auto condos, nor shall any auto condo be ever 
occupied for residential purposes and the following additional 
conditions shall apply: 

5



 
 

City of Independence  6 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

 
a) Individual signs shall not be permitted for any units 

within the development. 
b) No outdoor storage will be permitted. 
c) Parking shall be permitted only in the designated 

parking spaces. 
 

(B) Accessory uses. None. 
 

(C) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses may be permitted by action of 
the city council pursuant to subsections 520.09, 520.11 and 520.13: 

 

(1) Telecommunications towers approved pursuant to section 540 of this Code; 
 

(2) Any other use determined by the city council to be similar in character to 
a permitted use, but potentially requiring special conditions to ensure 
compatibility. 

 
(D) Physical standards. 

 
(1) Minimum Lot Size: per approved general plan 
(2) Minimum Lot Width: per approved general plan 
(3) Front Yard: 50 feet 
(4) Side Yard: 20 feet 
(5) Corner Side Yard: 20 feet 
(6) Rear Yard: 30 feet 
(7) Residential Properties: 40 feet 
(8) Agriculture Properties: 40 feet 
(9) Parking and Drive Aisle: 

 
a. Front Yard: 15 feet 
b. Side Yard: 5 feet 
c. Rear Yard: 5 feet 

 
Discussion: 
The City reviewed a concept site plan in 2022 for this property and provided feedback to the 
applicant and staff. The applicant considered the feedback and direction and has now made a 
formal application to develop the subject property. The applicant has revised the proposed 
development to include eight (8) single-family lots along Nelson Road, 120-130 lifestyle auto 
condominiums and 10,600 SF of commercial/retail space. The proposed lifestyle auto 
condominiums would be developed to allow for vehicle storage and would include amenities 
associated with this type of product (i.e., loft, bathroom, etc.). The applicant and City would 
work to establish regulations to prohibit overnight stays and limit and define any larger events 
(i.e., auto show) that could occur on the property. It is acknowledged that the proposed 
lifestyle auto condominiums would produce less traffic, require fewer public resources, and 
provide more market valuation than the initial commercial/warehouse development. The 
facility would be secured, professionally managed, and generally concealed from Highway 12 
and Nelson Road. 

6



 
 

City of Independence  7 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

 
Approximately 10,600 SF of commercial retail is proposed by the applicant. This area would 
have Highway 12 frontage and visibility consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The 
City has reviewed the initial site plan layout and is generally in agreement with the proposed 
layout. The City would require a more detailed site plan specifically for the proposed Lot 9 
development. The plan will need to provide more detail relating to allowed and proposed 
uses, parking and drive aisle dimensions, landscaping and lighting. In addition, the City will 
want to consider how/if the site could or would accommodate retail sales such as a drive thru 
and restaurant. A more detailed parking analysis would need to be completed. 

 
In order for the City to consider approval of the proposed plan, the following approvals and 
steps would be required: 

 
1. Amend the Comprehensive Plan. 

a. This would re-guide a portion of the property (~16 acres) from 
AG- Agriculture to Urban Commercial. 

2. Rezone that portion of the property indicated from AG-Agriculture to Urban Commercial. 
3. Consider Site Plan Review. 
4. Consider a Conditional Use Permit to allow a planned unit commercial development on 

the subject property. 
5. Consider Preliminary Plat approval. 
6. Consider Final Plat approval. 

 
The following land uses are proposed by the applicant (plans attached): 

 
• Commercial office/retail (10,600 SF on ~ 2.33 acres) 
• Lifestyle auto condominiums (102 units on ~ 11.98 acres) 
• Seven (7) Residential Lots (approximately 3.26 – 4.35 acres each) 
• Frontage Road ROW (3.22 acres) 

 
There are several key points of information that should be noted relating to the 
proposed development: 

• The entire property is currently zoned AG-Agriculture. 
 

• A portion of the property, approximately 12 acres on the west side is guided by the 
City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan for Urban Commercial. 

 
• The applicant is asking the City to consider rezoning a larger portion of the property 

from AG-Agriculture to Urban Commercial (~16 acres). 
• The remainder of the property (~28 acres) would remain as AG-Agriculture. 

 
• In order for the property to be rezoned, the City would first need to approve a 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment. A comprehensive plan amendment process would 
be subject to approval by the Metropolitan Council. 

  

• The initial submittal considered access to Nelson Road and the applicant was notified 

7



 
 

City of Independence  8 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

that the City would not support any commercial access to Nelson Road. The plans 
submitted include a right in/right out only onto Highway 12 with a future frontage road 
connection to the west that could connect to County Line Road (shown on site plan). 
MNDOT has reviewed the plan and provided formal comments to the City and 
applicant. MNDOT has commented that they would recommend access to this site be 
provided via a connection to Nelson Road or County Line Road rather than a right 
in/right out as proposed. As a result of the MNDOT review, access has not been 
finalized.  The issue of access will need to be resolved prior to the City finalizing a 
decision relating to this application. 

 
• The applicant has provided the City with a traffic study as requested. The study 

indicates that the proposed development would generate a total of 7 entering and 1 
exiting trips during the morning traffic peak and 2 entering and 7 exiting during the 
afternoon traffic peak hour. A total of 68 trips per day would be generated by the 
proposed auto condos and commercial retail uses. This would equate to approximately 
1 trip every 7 minutes during peak times and approximately 2 trips per hour throughout 
the remainder of the day (see table below).  It is noted that the proposed right in/right 
out would allow access to the proposed development until such time as a frontage road 
could be constructed to connect to County Line Road. Staff is seeking direction relating 
to access and the overall proposal from the Planning Commission and City Council. 

 
• Following discussion with Planning and Council, the applicant has revised the plans to 

include eight (8) residential lots along Nelson Rd. The proposed residential lots mirror 
the lots across Nelson Rd. to the east. Development of the west side of Nelson into 
residential lots that are similar to those in existence would provide additional buffering 
of the proposed commercial development. It is noted that the existing residential lots 
directly across and on the east side of Nelson Road from the subject property have 
approximately 200 LF of frontage. The City’s current ordinance would require 250 LF 
of frontage for all lots greater than 3.49 acres. This would include Lots 1, 2 & 6-8. Lots 
3-5 comply with the frontage requirements. The applicant could revise the plan to 
reduce the acreage of the proposed lots or increase the frontages to meet the specified 
requirements. The applicant is attempting to mirror the lots across the street; however, 
those lots are all less than 3.49 acres in size. 

 
• The City noted in its initial review that the potential wetland impact associated with 

the development of driveways to serve the lots was a concern. The applicant has 
revised the plans to show the extent of the wetland impacts and is now proposing to 
utilize shared driveways for Lots 1&2, 3&4 and 6&7. Utilization of shared driveways 
would reduce the wetland impacts and the number of driveways located along Nelson 
Road. 

 
• The applicant is proposing to provide on-site sewer (septic) and on-site water to serve 

the proposed development. The applicant has provided a report indicating how the 
development of on-site water would serve the fire suppression requirements for the 
proposed development. The City is continuing to evaluate and study the possibility of 
establishing a municipal well/water service in the location of the Urban Commercial to 
serve commercial development on the north and south sides of Highway 12. Should the 
proposed development move forward, the City will provide additional information 

8



 
 

City of Independence  9 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

relating to a municipal well to Council for consideration. 
 

• The applicant has completed a wetland delineation for the property. The City initially 
provided feedback to the applicant relating to the potential wetland impacts. The 
applicant is proposing to mitigate the impacted wetlands utilizing the purchase of 
wetland credits. Approximately 31.36 acres of the subject property is wetlands. The 
applicant is proposing to impact 2.48 acres of the total wetland area (> 8%). The 
potential wetland impacts would need to be reviewed and approved by the City. Further 
review of the wetland mitigation plan would occur following an initial City approval. 
 
 

• Stormwater management has been proposed for the development. The City has 
completed an initial review of the stormwater management plan and provided high 
level comments to the applicant. The proposal includes 3 stormwater ponds that 
would accommodate stormwater generated from the commercial portion of the 
proposed development. The City will continue to work with the applicant and would 
anticipate a more detailed submittal and calculations relating to the stormwater plan 
should the project proceed to final plat. 

 
• The applicant is proposing to preserve a large portion of the mature trees on the 

property (see gray area below). 
 

The applicant has provided the City with a robust package of details and information relating 
to the proposed development. The proposed lifestyle auto condominium illustrations appear to 
utilize high quality building materials and a sophisticated design that is unique for this product 
in the metro area. There are many details that will need to be finalized prior to the City being 
able to formally act on the proposed site development and preliminary plat. Due to the 
significant number of pieces included in the proposed site development, staff would like 
additional direction and feedback relating to the overall proposal so that additional review and 
direction can be provided to the applicant. In particular, staff is seeking additional review and 
direction relating to the proposed land use, expansion of the UC – Urban Commercial zoning 
district, access to the property and the development of the residential properties on Nelson 
Road. It is anticipated that following discussion and additional direction, the City would be 
able to work with the applicant to finalize the preliminary plans and bring back additional 
information and any revisions recommended for further consideration. It is also anticipated that 
the City and applicant will have further discussions with MNDOT relating to their 
recommended access for this property. 

 
 

Recommendation: 
The applicant is seeking feedback from the Planning Commission pertaining to the proposed 
development. 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 
 

City of Independence  10 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

 
The Applicant’s request had been tabled after closing the public hearing at the last January 17, 2023, 
Planning Commission meeting. Tonight, Kaltsas went through the packet’s 5-page UPDATE section 
and reviewed the Applicant’s RESPONSES to his January 30, 2023, letter.  It was noted that the 
Applicant reduced the number of residential lots to (7) allowing for a future frontage road right of 
way. The included updated architectural drawings also show more details on the building, parking 
layout, 49 parking spaces, landscaping, building finishings, nicer garage doors, elevations for all 
buildings, lighting, etc. Photometric plans meet the City’s standards and show where they zero out- 
meaning no measurable light level for entirety of site. As the project progresses to the Final, details 
of the mechanicals’ screening and the “No Parking” areas and street striping will be noted. The types 
of businesses allowed would have low traffic considering Hwy 12 currently does not have a frontage 
road.  
 
When opening it up to questions, Kaltsas and Commissioners discussed the need to ensure that 
Planned Unit Development Standards’ Permitted Uses would clearly express the intention to any 
potential business that only low traffic options are permitted now until such a time of safe road 
connection is built reflecting any future changes of Hwy 12 with a roundabout. Kaltsas stated that if 
it’s not written, it is not permitted.  
 
Access: The City’s stance unless directed differently, we don’t want a connection to Nelson Rd for 
the commercial piece as it’s not designed or built for that amount of traffic. We are comfortable with 
the 7 lots connecting to it as it is consistent to our policy. MNDot would consider allowing a 
temporary interim RIRO/Right In Right Out access on to Hwy 12 to serve the commercial 
development. But the City asked the Developer to dedicate a full frontage road right of way 
connecting out to Nelson Rd. The Blue Outlot A shown/66 ft ROW allowing for a future frontage 
road connecting on the East side through to Nelson Rd on the West side. It would be only until the 
time Hwy 12 was reconstructed and re-engineered at County Line Road and Hwy 12- a roundabout 
which is currently a 5-yr plan item for MNDot. Nelson Road would not change until Hwy 12 was 
rebuilt and a full frontage road was built.  MNDot loved the easement concept but still wants a 
connection and fix to all the potential illegal turns.  Re: Concerns for making illegal rt hand turn vs 
an unprotected left-hand turn.) As an alternative in between, the Builder to make a private drive 
keeping the RIRO as a primary access but maybe having a 1-way or no-turn on Nelson Rd sign, so 
only able to come into the North piece of Nelson Rd. OR other Right-In-ONLY off Hwy 12 into 
Nelson from the West- Thus No West-bound movement.  We could recommend as-is, as the City 
Attorney thought it was reasonable and we are not forced to grant a variance if we don’t want access 
to a residential street from commercial development.   These auto condo owners won’t be wanting to 
drive their types of high-end cars on gravel roads which reduces traffic for Nelson Road residents. 
 
Zoning and lot sizes: Commissioners discuss the uniqueness of what’s here, but because RR lots 
don’t extend pass Co Rd 90, and they co-exist nicely.    
 
Who pays?  Currently, it’s undesignated.  The City may pay or look to a MNDot partnership or 
further development. Previously it was State Bonding Bill and no funds came from the County. We 
would be passing that out. We are doing our job and participating with the Developer to move the 
ROW and future Hwy 12 roundabout.  
 
We note individual items in staff report with additional items as the recommendations. 
After Council reviews, it’ll return to Planning Commission for Final consideration. 

10



 
 

City of Independence  11 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 pm February 21, 2023 
 

 
 
Motion by Thompson, seconded by Dumas to recommend approval to City Council for 
William Stoddard at 9285 Hwy 12 regarding the 5 portions (a-e) of this request subject to all 
staff recommendations with additional feedback provided from this meeting including 
Permitted Uses, Nelson Road connection, and Landscaping. Ayes: Gardner, Dumas, 
Volkenant, Thompson, and Usset. Nays: None. Absent: Story and Tearse. Abstain: None. 
Motion Approved. 5-0 
 
 
This will go to the next Council meeting on March 7th. 
 
 

5. Open/Misc. 
 

Kaltsas- Thank you for coming out in this snowstorm tonight. We have a lot going on right now and 
one or two for next month’s meeting. We moved the next Planning Commission meeting from 
March 21st to March 28th to get Council quorum. Although building permitting has slowed down a 
bit, I am getting inquiries for sub-division-type questions as there are still people looking to develop.  
As an update, I’m closing in on a MetCouncil CompPlan approval with a few tweaks that you will 
see again once approved by them.  It will set us up for growth for the next 7 years.  We championed 
the MetCouncil’s 2030 Growth Projections and felt they were realistic. When they came back with 
their 2040 Forecast, they had throttled everyone back based on regional changes to growth.  We had 
asked them to keep our 2030 Projections, but they had denied that.  They didn’t think that we would 
grow. 

 

6. Adjourn. 
 
Motion by Thompson, seconded Volkenant by to adjourn.  

 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

 
_____________________________ 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Linda Johnson/ Recording Secretary 
 

11



  

 
City of Independence                                                                                                                                                         1   
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. April 4, 2023 
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, APRIL 4, 2023 – 6:30 P.M. 

City Hall Chambers 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER.  

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called 
to order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  3.   ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson and Councilors Betts and Grotting. 
ABSENT: McCoy and Spencer. 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas and City Administrative Director Simon. 
VISITORS: Lauren Davis 

 
 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 28, 2023, Regular City 
Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 28, 2023, Pre-Board LBAE City  
Council Meeting. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 21921-21932). 
 

 
Motion by Johnson, seconded by Betts to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, 
and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: McCoy and Spencer. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 3-0 

 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 
6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• Council meeting (virtually)  
• Maple Plain Fire Dept awards  

 
 

 

12



  

 
City of Independence                                                                                                                                                         2   
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. April 4, 2023 
 

Betts attended the following meetings: 
• Maple Plain Fire Dept awards  

 
Johnson attended the following meetings:  

• Corridors of Commerce Hwy 55 
• Maple Plain Fire Dept awards  

 
 Kaltsas attended the following meetings:  

• Maple Plain Fire Dept awards  
 

       Simon attended the following meetings: 
• none 

 
  
7. Consider Approval of Public Works Capital Equipment Purchase in Accordance with Approved 

Capital Equipment Plan: 
 

a. Authorization to Purchase 2018 Used CRAFCO SS125 Crack Seal Melter - Diesel 
 
We project out about a 20-year capital equipment purchase plan and update it annually when doing our 
budget. We have talked about this item for a while. We have worked with surrounding cities to share and 
borrow it, and it is holding us back from using it at the most opportune time. Shawn and his team went out 
to see what options were available. It is identical to the model Medina has that we have been using, so the 
staff knows how to use it. This costs $32,000 which is below what we’d budgeted.  
 
Mayor Johnson- It is time sensitive when you can do the work, and when you are sharing equipment, you 
can’t coordinate that. We have more roads to do and are in a position to do it. 
 
 
Motion by Grotting, seconded by Betts to approve the purchase of a Used 2018 CRAFCO SS125 
Crack Seal Melter- Diesel. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: McCoy and 
Spencer. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 3-0 
 
 

 
8. Open/Misc 

Lauren Davis – My husband and I have lived here 6 years, and this is my first council meeting. 
Regarding roads and Public Works, I’ve tried to reach Shawn since 2021 to get Hitsman Lane repaired. 
What is the best way to get gravel roads repaired? 
Mayor Johnson – There is going to be a work session soon.  
Kaltsas- Acutely we can look at your road. We are trying to put together a long-term plan with gravel 
roads as this year has been horrendous. In general, the City is in need of an overhaul of adding 
materials to gravel roads. We’ve run the lifespan and are talking about putting together a larger, city-
wide gravel rejuvenation project.  
Mayor Johnson- That may be a road that is up in the air with the Hwy 12 repairs as well. WHPS 
Director Gary Kroells would most likely have the long-range study for you, Lauren. 
Davis – Both we and our neighbor have big trailers that need to safely get in and out of there. 

 
 
 

13



  

 
City of Independence                                                                                                                                                         3   
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. April 4, 2023 
 

9. Adjourn 
 
 
Motion by Johnson, seconded by Grotting to adjourn the City Council Meeting at 6:52 pm. Ayes: 
Johnson, Betts, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: McCoy and Spencer. Abstain. None.  MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 3-0 
 

Meeting Adjourned. 
 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Linda Johnson, Recording Secretary 

14



1980	County	Road	90	–Site	Plan	Review	Request	 2023
	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for Site Plan Review for the  

Property located at 1980 County Road 90 
 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: April 18, 2023 

Applicant: Seasonal Investments, LLC 

Owner: 1980 Co Rd 90 LLC 

Location: 1980 County Road 90 

 

Request: 
Seasonal Investments, LLC, (Applicant) and 1980 County Road 90 LLC (Owner) request that 
the City consider the following action for the property located at 1980 County Road 90, 
Independence, MN (PID No. 23-118-24-32-0011): 
 

a. Site plan review to allow the proposed development of two new storage buildings 
on the subject property.  

 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the east side of CSAH 90 just north of the intersection of County 
Road 90 and Highway 12.  The property is vacant and currently used by Sam’s Landscape as an 
outdoor storage yard.  There is a significant wetland located on the east side of the property. The 
property has the following characteristics: 
 

Property Information: 198o County Road 90  
 Zoning: CLI - Commercial Light Industrial 
 Comprehensive Plan: Commercial Light Industrial 
 Acreage: 5.84 acres 
 

 

  

15



1980	County	Road	90	–Site	Plan	Review	Request	 2023
	 	
	 Page	2	
 

1980 County Road 90 

 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant approached the City about the possibility of developing the property with two new 
commercial buildings for the purpose of indoor boat storage.  The applicant has prepared plans 
for the proposed development of the site and is now in a position to move forward with the 
proposed development of two new commercial buildings.  The applicant is seeking site plan 
review approval to allow the construction of two new single-level, 12,000 square foot buildings 
(total 24,000 SF) and associated site plan improvements.  The site improvements include parking 
areas, outdoor storage areas and landscaping. 
 
The subject property is zoned CLI – Commercial Light Industrial.  Warehouse and indoor 
storage are permitted within the CLI zoning district.  The applicant owns and operates a 
commercial marina, repair and boat storage business and is seeking a location for additional 
indoor storage.  The proposed development would be comprised of two 12,000 SF storage 
buildings.  No outdoor storage is proposed at this time.  New construction in the CLI zoning 
district requires the review and approval of the City.  The review considers and analyzes how the 
proposed development meets the requirements of the zoning ordinance (Sections 530.17 and 
530.23).   
 

16



1980	County	Road	90	–Site	Plan	Review	Request	 2023
	 	
	 Page	3	
 

The City has adopted site and design requirements for commercial development.  The City has 
reviewed the plans as they relate to the required standards provided in the zoning ordinance.  The 
following items should be further considered by the Planning Commission: 
 

1. Building Design – The City ordinance provides the following requirement for additions 
to commercial buildings: 

 
a. Allowed materials for principal buildings. Principal commercial or industrial 

buildings in the commercial/industrial zoning district shall use the following 
materials on their exterior facades:  

(1)  Brick;  
(2)  Natural stone or stone veneers;  
(3)  Decorative concrete block (color impregnated with a split faced, robbed, or 

textured  surface;  

(4)  Glass curtain wall panels;  
(5)  Stucco or synthetic stucco;  

(6)  Exterior insulation and finish systems (EIFS).  
 

The applicant is proposing to construct two commercial buildings on the property.  The 
applicant has confirmed that they will meet all applicable building material requirements 
but has not resubmitted a fully compliant building materials plan.  The City anticipates 
that this will be submitted prior to the Planning Commission Meeting.  The applicant has 
provided building elevations and images that provide dimensional and similar details for 
the proposed buildings.  The general character and architecture of the proposed buildings 
is similar to that of other buildings in the general area.  

 
2. Parking/Drive Access - The applicant is proposing to construct new bituminous access 

drive that have an ingress/egress coming off of the existing connecting driveway to CSAH 
90 used by the adjacent property to the south.  The proposed access driveway will also 
include a concrete curb and gutter perimeter as required by ordinance.  The City will require 
that the applicant furnish and ultimately record a cross access and maintenance agreement 
pertaining to the shared driveway access.  
 
The City initially commented on the driveway and fire department access and the plans 
have bene updated to accommodate a compliant fire apparatus hammerhead.  
 
The proposed use of the site for storage would not require additional off-street parking.  
Note that this site as proposed would not accommodate general business use and could not 
be broken down into individual lease spaces in the future.  The proposed distance between 
buildings would not accommodate a drive aisle and parking spaces. 

   

17



1980	County	Road	90	–Site	Plan	Review	Request	 2023
	 	
	 Page	4	
 

3. Setbacks – The City has the following setback requirements for buildings located in the 
CLI zoning district: 
 

Required        Proposed  
a. Front yard setback: 100 feet from centerline of road.   100’ + 
b. Side yard setback: 20 feet from side lot line.     25’ N/20’ S 
c. Rear yard setback: 20 feet from rear lot line.     N/A 
d. Setback from boundary of agricultural or rural residential dist.  N/A 
e. Parking Setbacks: 20 feet from front /10 feet from side lot line. N/A 

 
The proposed buildings would meet all applicable setbacks.   
 

4. Lighting – The applicant has noted wall mounted lighting over each garage door on the 
site plan.  The City requires a photometric plan and detailed cut sheets for the proposed 
lighting.  The City will require this to be submitted and reviewed for compliance prior to 
City Council consideration.   
 

5. Landscaping - Landscaping is required for new construction within all requisite setback 
areas.  The City has reviewed the proposed landscape plan.  The plan generally meets the 
applicable requirements.  The City would request that additional evergreen trees be 
planted along the east side of the buildings to screen views from the adjacent residential 
property to the northeast. The City can continue to work with the applicant to revise the 
plan to meet applicable requirements.  Staff is seeking further direction from the Planning 
Commission relating to the requisite landscaping. Staff recommends that a condition be 
added to the site plan approval which requires submittal and approval of a final landscape 
plan.   
     

6. Storm Water Management – The City’s engineer (Hakanson Anderson) has reviewed the 
plans and prepared comments in a letter dated March 6, 2023, and attached to this letter.  
The plans will need to be revised to accommodate the engineer’s comments and provide 
any requested information and or make and revisions and resubmit revised plans as 
necessary.  This project will also require the review and approval of the watershed 
district.  The plans will be revised prior to City Council consideration of the site plan 
review.  The applicant has provided a stormwater management pond in the northwest 
corner of the site to accommodate runoff and quality control.   

 
7. Lot Coverage - The maximum impervious lot coverage in the CLI zoning district is 30 

percent. The overall site is 5.84 acres and impervious surface is broken down as follows: 
 

 

18



1980	County	Road	90	–Site	Plan	Review	Request	 2023
	 	
	 Page	5	
 

The applicant is proposing to cover 15.4% of the proposed site with impervious surface.   
 
The City stipulates the following relating to lot coverage in the zoning ordinance: 

 
Lot coverage. Impervious lot coverage shall not exceed 30 percent of the lot 
area. Lot coverage of up to 75 percent may be allowed by conditional use 
permit provided stormwater run-off and surface drainage is no greater than 
pre-development rates for one-, ten- and 100-year storm events. Stormwater 
treatment ponding is required for all developments. 

 
8. Sanitary Sewer – The proposed buildings will not have any finished interior space and 

will not have any bathroom facilities or water.  There is an existing on-site septic system 
that would be removed as a part of the building/house demolition.  The applicant is not 
proposing to preserve and or accommodate any on-site septic system which will limit 
future use of the proposed buildings.   

 
The proposed development of this commercial property generally meets the intent and applicable 
requirements of the City’s CLI zoning district.  The City will update the Planning Commission 
on the building materials and architecture and will be looking for Planning Commission direction 
and discussion at the meeting.  There are several items noted in the report that should be further 
considered by the Planning Commission.  Based on direction from the Planning Commission, 
additional conditions may be required to be added to the recommendation. 
 

Neighbor Comments: 

The City has not received any written or verbal comments regarding the proposed site plan review. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission for the requested site plan review.  
Should the Planning Commission recommend approval to the City Council, the following findings and 
conditions should be considered: 

1. The proposed Site Plan Review request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions 
stated in Chapter V, Section 520.25, Site Plan Approval Procedures, in the City of 
Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 

2. The applicant shall submit a final landscape plan and receive City approval prior to City 
Council consideration. 
 

19



1980	County	Road	90	–Site	Plan	Review	Request	 2023
	 	
	 Page	6	
 

3. The applicant shall submit a final lighting and photometric plan and detailed cut sheets for 
all proposed building and site lighting prior to and receive City approval prior to City 
Council consideration. 

 
4. The applicant shall comply with all applicable storm water requirements and obtain all 

storm water approvals determined necessary. 
 

5. The applicant shall receive approval of the proposed access from Hennepin County. 
 

6. The City will require that the applicant furnish and ultimately record a cross access and 
maintenance agreement pertaining to the shared driveway access. 

 
7. No outdoor storage is approved as a part of this approval. 

 
8. Any future development or improvements made to this property will need to be in 

compliance with all applicable standards relating to the Commercial-Light Industrial 
zoning district.   

 
9. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested site 

plan review approval. 
 

10. The City Council resolution shall be recorded against the property. 
 

 

Attachments: 
1. Application 
2. Site Plan Package 
3. Landscape Plan 
4. Building Elevations 

 
       

 

 

 

 

20



21



22



202

FO

T
T

SEP

SEPSEP

STO
STO

STO

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

PO
H

POH POH POH

20
'

E-
E

24'
F-F

BOAT STORAGE BUILDING
12000 SF
FFE: 970.0

BOAT STORAGE BUILDING
12000 SF
FFE: 970.0

REMOVE EXISTING CURB AS
NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED
DRIVE LANE

WETLAND BUFFER

WETLAND BUFFER
SETBACK

5.8'

5.8
'

R20.00'

60
.0

'

200.0'

60
.0

'

200.0'

R20.00'

20
.0

'

25
.0

'

20
.0

'20
.0

'
25

.0
'

25
.0

'

35
.0

'

FILTRATION
BASIN W/
FOREBAY
OUTLET=964.0
BOT=962.5
HWL=965.2
BERM=966.0

LED WALL PACK LIGHTING
ABOVE EACH OVERHEAD
DOOR (TYP.)

100.0'

SIDE SETBACK
(TYP.)

FRONT SETBACK
(TYP.)

20'
F-F

20
'

E-
E

R28.00'

R28.00'

R2
8.0

0'

B612 CONCRETE
CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.)

B612 TIPOUT
CONCRETE CURB

AND GUTTER (TYP.)

B612 TIPOUT
CONCRETE CURB
AND GUTTER (TYP.)

N
:\0

04
08

35
.0

0\
D

W
G\

CI
VI

L\
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y\
00

40
83

5C
-S

PP
01

.D
W

G

7
3

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00
INDEPENDENCE, MN

03/17/23

.

.

.

©
 2

02
3 

W
es

tw
oo

d 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s, 
In

c.

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE
FACILITY SITE PLAN

4068 SUNSET DRIVE
SPRING PARK, MN 55384

RO
CK

VA
M

 B
O

AT
 Y

AR
D

S 
ST

O
RA

GE
 F

AC
IL

IT
Y

02/09/23

5620803/17/23
CHRISTIAN H. FROEMKE

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NUMBER:

VERTICAL SCALE:

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:
INITIAL ISSUE:
REVISIONS:

Phone ����� �������� ����� :hLWeZaWer 'rLYe� 6XLWe ����
Fax ����� �������� 0LnneWonNa� 01 �����
Toll Free ����� ��������

DATE: LICENSE NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME
OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A
DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Common Ground Alliance

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

20'

4' OR 2'

0' 20' 40' 60'

1" = 20'

03/17/23

.

.

.

.

CITY COMMENTS

.

.

.

.

IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE

SETBACK LINE

EASEMENT LINE

B612 CURB AND GUTTER

POND NORMAL WATER LEVEL

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

TRANSFORMER

EXISTING PROPOSED

TRAFFIC SIGN

POWER POLE

BOLLARD / POST

TIP-OUT CURB AND GUTTER

1. LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY AND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
PLAN ARE APPROXIMATE.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY SITE CONDITIONS AND UTILITY
LOCATIONS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION/CONSTRUCTION. IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND, THE
ENGINEER SHOULD BE NOTIFIED IMMEDIATELY.

2. REFER TO BOUNDARY SURVEY FOR LOT BEARINGS, DIMENSIONS AND AREAS.

3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB OR EXTERIOR FACE OF BUILDING UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

4. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT BUILDING DIMENSIONS AND LOCATIONS OF
EXITS, RAMPS, AND TRUCK DOCKS.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING AND MAINTAINING TRAFFIC
CONTROL DEVICES SUCH AS BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS, DIRECTIONAL SIGNS, FLAGGERS
AND LIGHTS TO CONTROL THE MOVEMENT OF TRAFFIC WHERE NECESSARY. PLACEMENT OF
THESE DEVICES SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE CITY AND ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACEMENT.
TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL CONFORM TO APPROPRIATE MNDOT STANDARDS.

6. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT AND CONCRETE SECTIONS TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN FULL ACCESS TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES DURING
CONSTRUCTION AND TAKE ALL PRECAUTIONS NECESSARY TO AVOID PROPERTY DAMAGE TO
ADJACENT PROPERTIES.

8. SITE LIGHTING SHOWN ON PLAN IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY. REFER TO LIGHTING PLAN PREPARED
BY OTHERS FOR SITE LIGHTING DETAILS AND PHOTOMETRICS.

GENERAL SITE NOTES

PROPERTY LINE

LOT LINE

RETAINING WALL

NUMBER OF PARKING STALLS

SITE LIGHTING

FENCEXX

HEAVY DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

NORMAL DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

SITE LEGEND

5

T

EXISTING CONDITION

SITE AREA
(ACRES)

IMPERVIOUS
(ACRES)

IMPERVIOUS
%

PROPOSED CONDITION 5.84
5.84

0.90 15.4
1.17 20.0

· ALLOWABLE IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE IS 30%
· GRAVEL SURFACE IN THE EXISTING CONDITION

IS CONSIDERED IMPERVIOUS

23



N
:
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
\
D

W
G

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
P

R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
C

-
C

V
P

0
1
.
D

W
G

R
O

C
K

V
A

M
 
B

O
A

T
 
Y

A
R

D
S
 
S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
F
A

C
I
L
I
T
Y

©
 
2
0
2
3
 
W

e
s
t
w

o
o

d
 
P

r
o

f
e
s
s
i
o

n
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
I
n

c
.

SHEET INDEX

PRELIMINARY PLANS

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY

INDEPENDENCE, MN

PREPARED FOR:

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

4068 SUNSET DRIVE

SPRING PARK, MN 55384

CONTACT:  JERRY ROCKVAM

PHONE:  (612) 310-7095

EMAIL:  JERRY@RBYI.COM

Vicinity Map

(NOT TO SCALE)

SHEETSREVISIONDATENO.

. .

. .

. .

. .

. .

. .

. .

. .

. .

. .

FOR

FOR

SITE, GRADING & LANDSCAPE

PLAN

PREPARED BY:

PROJECT NUMBER:  0040835.00

CONTACT:  CHRISTIAN H. FROEMKE

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300
Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343
Toll Free (888) 937-5150 PRELIMINARY PLANS

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY

INDEPENDENCE, MN

FOR

FOR

SITE, GRADING & LANDSCAPE PLAN

INITIAL SUBMITTAL DATE:  02/09/23 SHEET:  1 OF 7

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00

SITE

Sheet List Table

SHEET

NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1 Cover

2
Existing Conditions & Removals Plan

3 Site Plan

4
Grading, Drainage, Erosion Control & Utility Plan

5 Details

6
Landscape Plan

7
Landscape Notes & Details

24



9
6
8

9
6
8

9
6
6

9

6

2

9

6

0

9

6

0

968

960

9

5

8

9
6
0

9
6
6

9
6
8

9
6
8

9

6

6

202

FO

T

T

SEP

MAIL

SEP

SEP

S
T
O

S
T
O

S
T
O

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

POH

POH

POH

X

X

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\

\
\

\ \
\ \

\ \
\ \

\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \

\
\

\

\
\

\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\ \ \

\ \ \

\

\
\

\

\
\

\
\

\
\

REMOVE EXISTING

WALLS (TYP.)

REMOVE EXISTING

FENCE

SAWCUT EXISTING

BITUMINOUS

REMOVE EXISTING

CURB AS NEEDED FOR

PROPOSED DRIVELANE

N
:
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
\
D

W
G

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
P

R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
C

-
E
C

P
0
1
.
D

W
G

7

2

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00

INDEPENDENCE, MN

02/09/23

.

.

.

©
 
2
0
2
3
 
W

e
s
t
w

o
o

d
 
P

r
o

f
e
s
s
i
o

n
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
I
n

c
.

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY

EXISTING CONDITIONS &

REMOVALS PLAN
4068 SUNSET DRIVE

SPRING PARK, MN 55384

R
O

C
K

V
A

M
 
B

O
A

T
 
Y

A
R

D
S
 
S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
F
A

C
I
L
I
T
Y

02/09/23

56208
02/09/23

CHRISTIAN H. FROEMKE

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NUMBER:

VERTICAL SCALE:

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:

INITIAL ISSUE:

REVISIONS:

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300
Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343
Toll Free (888) 937-5150

DATE: LICENSE NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME

OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A

DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Common Ground Alliance

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

20'

4' OR 2'

0' 20' 40' 60'

1" = 20'

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

LEGEND

PROPERTY LINE

SAW CUT PAVEMENT

EXISTING PROPOSED

RETAINING WALL

FENCE

X

EXISTING REMOVALS

\ \ \ \ \ \

\ \ \ \ \ \

REMOVAL LEGEND

1. LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY AND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

PLAN ARE APPROXIMATE.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY SITE CONDITIONS AND UTILITY

LOCATIONS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION/CONSTRUCTION.  THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED

IMMEDIATELY IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE LIMITS OF REMOVALS WITH PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

AND FIELD VERIFY CONDITION OF EXISTING APPURTENANCES TO REMAIN.  CONTRACTOR

SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING OR REPLACING MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS (SUCH AS

FENCES, SIGNS, IRRIGATION HEADS, ETC.) THAT MAY BE DAMAGED BY CONSTRUCTION.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE ALL NECESSARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES REQUIRED TO

MAINTAIN SITE STABILITY PRIOR TO EXECUTING ANY SITE REMOVALS.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATION WITH UTILITY PROVIDERS FOR

REMOVAL AND/OR RELOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES AFFECTED BY SITE DEVELOPMENT.  ALL

PERMITS, APPLICATIONS AND FEES ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

REMOVAL NOTES

CATCH BASIN MANHOLE

SEPTIC COVER

SEP

POWER POLE

TELEPHONE BOX

T

SIGN

MAIL BOX

MAIL

POWER OVERHEAD
POH

BOUNDARY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

25



9
6
8

9
6
8

9
6
6

9

6

2

9

6

0

9

6

0

968

960

9

5

8

9
6
0

9
6
6

9
6
8

9
6
8

9

6

6

202

FO

T

T

SEP

MAIL

SEP

SEP

S
T
O

S
T
O

S
T
O

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

POH

POH

POH

X

X

12,000 SF

BOAT STORAGE

FFE=970

12,000 SF

BOAT STORAGE

FFE=970

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

S

F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S

F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

SF

FILTRATION

BASIN

OUTLET=964.0

BOT=962.5

HWL=965.2

BERM=966.0

LP

968.83

HP

969.50

HP

969.50

HP

969.50

LP

968.00

HP

969.50

969.50

HP

970.19

964

9

6

6

9

6

6

HP

969.50

LP

968.83

LP

968.83

E.O.F.

965.20

67 LF-12" STM SWR @ 0.45%

67 LF-12" RCP CL 5 @ 0.45%

9
6
 
L
F
-
1
5
"
 
S
T
M

 
S
W

R
 
@

 
0
.3

5
%

6

1

 
L

F

-

6

"

 
P

V

C

 
@

 
0

.
5

0

%

27 LF-12" STM

SWR @ 0.45%

277 LF-12" STM SWR @ 0.45%

9
7
0

9
6
4

9

6

6

9
6
8

9
7
2

MAINTAIN 2.5% CROSS

SLOPE IN DRIVELANE

170 LF-6" PVC @ 0.50%

CBMH-103

RE=968.83

IE=965.14 (W)

CBMH-102

RE=968.83

IE=964.84 (E)

IE=964.84 (W)

CBMH-101

RE=968.83

IE=964.54 (E)

IE=964.34 (W)

FES-100

RE=964.00

IE=964.00 (E)

CO-303

RE=964.00

IE=960.50 (N)

OCS-302

RE=964.00

IE=960.19 (S)

IE=960.19 (NE)

STMH-301

RE=964.97

IE=960.07 (SW)

IE=960.07 (E)

FES-300

RE=959.27

IE=958.82 (W)

AREA DRAIN-201

RE=968.00

IE=965.00 (E)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

PER DETAIL

EROSION CONTROL

BLANKET

INLET PROT. (TYP.)

N
:
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
\
D

W
G

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
P

R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
C

-
G

D
P

0
1
.
D

W
G

7

4

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00

INDEPENDENCE, MN

02/09/23

.

.

.

©
 
2
0
2
3
 
W

e
s
t
w

o
o

d
 
P

r
o

f
e
s
s
i
o

n
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
I
n

c
.

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY

GRADING, DRAINAGE,

EROSION CONTROL &

UTILITY PLAN

4068 SUNSET DRIVE

SPRING PARK, MN 55384

R
O

C
K

V
A

M
 
B

O
A

T
 
Y

A
R

D
S
 
S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
F
A

C
I
L
I
T
Y

02/09/23

56208
02/09/23

CHRISTIAN H. FROEMKE

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NUMBER:

VERTICAL SCALE:

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:

INITIAL ISSUE:

REVISIONS:

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300
Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343
Toll Free (888) 937-5150

DATE: LICENSE NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME

OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A

DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Common Ground Alliance

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

20'

4' OR 2'

0' 20' 40' 60'

1" = 20'

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

EXISTING PROPOSED

GRADING LEGEND

GRADING & DRAINAGE NOTES

PROPERTY LINE

9

8

2

9

8

0

TOP AND BOTTOM OF RETAINING WALL

EMERGENCY OVERFLOW

SB-19 SOIL BORING LOCATION

STO

STORM SEWER

TREE LINE

INDEX CONTOUR

INTERVAL CONTOUR

9

8

2

9

8

0

SPOT ELEVATION

FLOW DIRECTION

SB-19

RETAINING WALL (MODULAR BLOCK)

GRADING LIMITS

GL

1. ALL CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN TO FINISHED SURFACE/GUTTER GRADES

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. REFER TO THE SITE PLAN/RECORD PLAT FOR MOST CURRENT HORIZONTAL SITE DIMENSIONS

AND LAYOUT.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION AND ELEVATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND

TOPOGRAPHICAL FEATURES WITH THE OWNERS AND FIELD-VERIFY PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR

VARIATIONS FROM PLAN.

4. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO LOCAL RULES.

5. POSITIVE DRAINAGE FROM THE SITE MUST BE PROVIDED AT ALL TIMES.

0.00%

900.00
900.00

TW=XXX.XX

BW=XXX.XX

E.O.F.

HIGH/LOW POINT

HP/LP

900.00

CL-CL ELEVATION

CL-CL

900.00

PROPOSED STREET PROFILE GRADE

X.XX%

POND NORMAL WATER LEVEL

WETLAND LINE

WETLAND FILL

WETLAND BUFFER

POND ACCESS MAINTENANCE BENCH

WETLAND BUFFER LIMITS

WETLAND BUFFER MONUMENT

DO NOT DISTURB

DND

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND

NOTIFY THE OWNER OF ANY DIFFERENCES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RECEIVE THE NECESSARY PERMITS FOR ALL WORK OUTSIDE OF THE

PROPERTY LIMITS.

3. VERIFY EXISTING INVERT LOCATION & ELEVATION PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT "GOPHER STATE ONE CALL" FOR FOR UTILITY LOCATIONS

PRIOR TO UTILITY INSTALLATION.

GENERAL UTILITY NOTES

WETLAND BUFFER

WETLAND BUFFER

SETBACK

6" PVC

IE: 964.0

INLET PROTECTION

ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

26



N
:
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
\
D

W
G

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
P

R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
C

-
D

T
P

0
1
.
D

W
G

7

5

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00

INDEPENDENCE, MN

02/09/23

.

.

.

©
 
2
0
2
3
 
W

e
s
t
w

o
o

d
 
P

r
o

f
e
s
s
i
o

n
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
I
n

c
.

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY
DETAILS

4068 SUNSET DRIVE

SPRING PARK, MN 55384

R
O

C
K

V
A

M
 
B

O
A

T
 
Y

A
R

D
S
 
S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
F
A

C
I
L
I
T
Y

02/09/23

56208
02/09/23

CHRISTIAN H. FROEMKE

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NUMBER:

VERTICAL SCALE:

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:

INITIAL ISSUE:

REVISIONS:

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300
Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343
Toll Free (888) 937-5150

DATE: LICENSE NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME

OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A

DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Common Ground Alliance

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

###

### OR ##

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

ST05

RIPRAP AT OUTLETS

8

10

10

8

12

14

18

20

16

12

L

(Ft.)

TABLE OF QUANTITIES

24"

DepthDepth

18"

RiprapRiprapApron

(Cu. Yd.)(Cu. Yd.)(Cu. Yd.)(Cu. Yd.)(Cu. Yd.)(Cu. Yd.)

Riprap

Depth

12"

(In.)

Pipe

Round

Dia.

2.3

2.1

1.5

1.2

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

16.4

13.2

12.3

9.4

8.5

6.4

5.9

2.2

1.7

1.6

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

12.3

9.9

9.2

7.1

6.4

4.8

4.4

1.5

1.2

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

12.5

10.6

8.2

6.6

6.2

4.7

4.3

3.2

3.0

RIPRAP AT OUTLETS

CLASS IVCLASS II CLASS III

2.929.6

24.9

21.1

22.2

18.7

15.8

14.848

42

36

30

27

24

21

18

15

12

PLAN

SECTION B-B

RIPRAP

1'

2'

2'

SECTION A-A

GRANULAR FILTER

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

MNDOT 3733

5

2

GRANULAR CUSHION 4

GRANULAR

CUSHION

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

MNDOT 3733

2

1'
1

RIPRAP

D
I
A

.

E
2
'

3

2
'

2
'

A
A

1

4

4

1

B

B

L

NOTES:

1. FOR PIPES GREATER OR EQUAL TO 30", USE 1.5'.

2. GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL COVER THE BOTTOM AND SIDES OF THE AREA EXCAVATED FOR THE RIPRAP, GRANULAR

        FILTER MATERIALS.

3. DIMENSION "E" EQUALS INSIDE WIDTH OF APRON.

4. GRANULAR FILTER, MNDOT 3601, MAY BE USED AS A CUSHION LAYER. PLACE FILTER PER MNDOT 2511.

5. GRANULAR FILTER OR RIPRAP, MNDOT 3601, TO EXTEND UNDER ENTIRE OPEN PORTION OF PIPE APRON. DEPTH OF

        MATERIAL UNDER APRON SHALL MATCH RIPRAP DEPTH. WHEN USING RIPRAP INCREASE RIPRAP QUANTITY ACCORDINGLY

        AND PLACE A 3" LAYER OF 1.5" CRUSHED ROCK UNDER THE APRON TO AID IN GRADING FOR APRON PLACEMENT.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE RIPRAP, PULVERIZED TOPSOIL, SEED AND WOODFIBER BLANKET IMMEDIATELY

        AFTER PIPE IS INSTALLED. EXTEND AREA TO MATCH UNDISTURBED SOIL.

Granular

Filter

Under

Apron

Granular

Filter

Under

Apron

Granular

Filter

Under

4

d

50

 = 6" d

50

 = 9" d

50 

 = 12"

LAST REVISED:

08/10/17

1

FILTER CLOTH 4'

ABOVE SOURCE

OF WATER

M

I
N

.
 

4

"

 

O

V

E

R

L

A

P

LAST REVISED:

04/20/21

GD21

BERM

W

A

T
E
R

 
T
A

B

L
E

15  4"

20  6"

25  6"

30  8"

35  8"

45  10"

NOTES:

1. MATS/BLANKETS SHOULD BE INSTALLED VERTICALLY DOWNSLOPE.

2. SLOPE SURFACE SHALL BE FREE OF ROCKS, CLODS, STICK AND GRASS.

3. MATS/BLANKETS SHALL HAVE GOOD SOIL CONTACT.

4. LAY BLANKETS LOOSELY AND STAKE OR STAPLE TO MAINTAIN DIRECT CONTACT WITH THE SOIL.

5. DO NOT STRETCH.

SLOPE RATIO

2:1 (H:V)>

2:1 - 1:1

STAPLES/YARD

1.2 STAPLES

1.7 STAPLES

SPACING FOR STAPLES

STAPLE

LENGTH

CATEGORY

OF

BLANKET

TYPICAL SLOPE SOIL STABILIZATION

ISOMETRIC VIEW

TAMP DIRT

OVER MAT/

BLANKET

V

A

R

I
E

S

NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE

FILTER FABRIC UNDER

TYPICAL TREATMENT

GENERAL

STAPLE

PATTERN

V

A

R

I

E

S

4'

V
A

R
IE

S

1
2
"

TEMPORARY EROSION BLANKETS

TURF REINFORCEMENT MATS FOR SLOPES

WET SLOPE LINING

V

A

R

I
E

S

SI19

PAVEMENT SECTIONS SHOWN ARE FOR PLANNING PURPOSES ONLY.

REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR FINAL PAVEMENT SECTIONS.

LAST REVISED:

08/15/17

PAVEMENT SECTIONS

1.5" MnDOT TYPE SPWEA340E WEARING COURSE

2" MnDOT TYPE SPNWB330E BASE COURSE

8" MnDOT SPEC. 3138 CLASS 5

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

18" COMPACTED SAND SUBGRADE (100% STANDARD PROCTOR)

MNDOT SPEC. 2357 BITUMINOUS TACK COAT

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

LAST REVISED:

08/15/17

SILT FENCE

GD02

RUNOFF

PONDING HEIGHT

F
L
O

W

F
L
O

W

 

PONDING HEIGHT

RUNOFF

NOTES:

1. INSPECT AND REPAIR FENCE AFTER EACH STORM EVENT AND REMOVE SEDIMENT WHEN NECESSARY.

2. REMOVED SEDIMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED TO AN AREA THAT WILL NOT CONTRIBUTE

        SEDIMENT OFF-SITE AND CAN BE PERMANENTLY STABILIZED.

3. SILT FENCE SHALL BE PLACED ON SLOPE CONTOURS TO MAXIMIZE PONDING EFFICIENCY.

TRENCH WITH NATIVE BACKFILL

ALTERNATIVE DETAIL

EXTRA STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC

TYPE II - ADD WIRE MESH BACKING

 TYPE III - ADD WIRE MESH AND HAY BALES

STEEL OR

WOOD POST

36" HIGH MAX.

STEEL OR

WOOD POST

FILTER FABRIC,

ATTACH SECURELY

TO UPSTREAM

SIDE OF POST

4"x6" TRENCH

WITH COMPACTED

BACKFILL

GRAVEL

8
"

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

9
"
 
M

A
X

.

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
E
D

S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
H

E
I
G

H
T

1

0

'
-

0

"

 
M

A

X

.
 
S

P

A

C

I
N

G

 
W

I
T

H

W

I
R

E

 
S

U

P

P

O

R

T

 
F

E

N

C

E

.

6

'
-

0

"

 
M

A

X

.
 
S

P

A

C

I
N

G

W

I
T

H

O

U

T

 
W

I
R

E

 
S

U

P

P

O

R

T

F

E

N

C

E

STANDARD DETAIL

TRENCH WITH GRAVEL

LAST REVISED:

08/15/17

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

GD05

NOTES:

1. FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE PLACED UNDER ROCK/WOOD CHIPS TO STOP MUD MIGRATION

        THROUGH ROCK/WOOD CHIPS.

2. WOODCHIPS USED FOR CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES MUST BE 80% NOT LESS THAN 2-INCHES AND NOT

        MORE THAN 5-INCHES. NO CHIPPED-UP MANUFACTURED WOOD AND/OR CHEMICALLY TREATED IS ALLOWED.

3. ENTRANCES MUST BE MAINTAINED REGULARLY TO PREVENT SEDIMENTATION ON PUBLIC ROADWAYS.

        FUGITIVE ROCK OR WOODCHIPS WILL BE REMOVED FROM ADJACENT ROADWAYS DAILY OR

        MORE FREQUENTLY AS NECESSARY.

4. LENGTH AND WIDTH TO BE ADJUSTED FOR SITE CONDITIONS.

H

A

R

D

 

S

U

R

F

A

C

E

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

O

A

D

1"-2" WASHED ROCK

OR WOODCHIPS PER

SPECIFICATIONS

18" MINIMUM CUT OFF TO

MINIMIZE RUNOFF FROM SITE

ROCK=12" MIN.

WOODCHIPS=18" MIN.

2

0

'

 

M

I

N

.

W

I

D

T

H

5

0

'
 
M

I
N

.

P

O

C

K

E

T

NOTES:

1. ALL GEOTEXTILE USED FOR INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE MONOFILAMENT IN BOTH

        DIRECTIONS,  (MEETING MnDOT SPEC. 3733 GEOTEXTILES)

2. FINISHED SIZE (INCLUDING POCKETS) SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF 10" AROUND THE

        PERIMETER TO FACILITATE MAINTENANCE OR REMOVAL.

3. DO NOT INSTALL PROTECTION IN INLETS SHALLOWER THAN 30". THE INSTALLED BAG SHALL HAVE A

        MINIMUM SIDE CLEARANCE BETWEEN THE INLET WALLS AND THE BAG, MEASURED AT THE BOTTOM OF

        THE OVERFLOW HOLES, OF 3".  WHERE NECESSARY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CLINCH THE

        BAG (USING PLASTIC ZIP TIES) TO ACHIEVE THE 3" CLEARANCE.

LAST REVISED:

08/15/17

STORM DRAIN

FILTER BAG INSERT

GD10

F

L

A

P

4
"

INLET SPECIFICATIONS

TO MATCH THE PLAN

DIMENSION LENGTH

AND WIDTH

2

1

MINIMUM DOUBLE

STITCHED SEAMS ALL

AROUND SIDE PIECES

AND ON FLAP POCKETS

FRONT, BACK, AND

BOTTOM TO BE

MADE FROM SINGLE

PIECE OF FABRIC

2"x4" HOLE SHALL BE

HEAT CUT INTO ALL

FOUR SIDE PANELS

USE REBAR OR STEEL ROD

FOR REMOVAL ( FOR INLETS

WITH CAST CURB BOX,

REPLACE  ROD WITH WOOD

2" X 4") . EXTEND 10"

BEYOND GRATE ON BOTH

SIDES, SECURE TO GRATE

WITH WIRE OR PLASTIC TIES

4

1

2

"

1
2
"

1
2
"

2"

LAST REVISED:

04/20/21TEMPORARY BIOROLL BLANKET SYSTEM

(DITCH APPLICATION)

GD23

F

L

O

W

NOTES:

1. POINT ''A'' MUST BE HIGHER THAN POINT ''B'' TO ENSURE THAT WATER FLOWS OVER

       THE DIKE AND NOT AROUND THE ENDS.

2. MnDOT SPEC. 3889, TYPE 3

CATEGORY 20/25 EROSION

CONTROL BLANKET (SPEC. 3885)

4"x4" TRENCH BACKFILLED OVER

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

(SPEC. 3885)

STRAW OR WOOD FIBER 6" OR

12" DIA. ROLL ENCLOSED IN

PLASTIC OR POLYESTER NETTING

BIOROLL MIN. 10' LONG

2"x2" x 18" LONG WOODEN STAKES

AT 2' SPACING. DRIVE THROUGH

NETTING AND FIBER ROLL.

8", 11 GA. STAPLES

SPACED 1' ON CENTER

POINT "B"

POINT "A"

1

2

'
 

M

I

N

.

B

L

A

N

K

E

T

S

 

M

U

S

T

O

V

E

R

L

A

P

 

B

Y

 

4

"

LAST REVISED:

08/15/17

RIPRAP OVERFLOW

NOTES:

1. INSTALL RIPRAP PER MNDOT SPEC 3601

2. RIPRAP SHALL BE CLASS III PER MNDOT SPEC 3601

GD33

POND/BASIN

PLAN

6
"

1
8
"

1' POND/BASIN

CONTOURS

INSTALL RIP-RAP DOWN TO

THE EXISTING GROUND TIE-IN

FILTER FABRIC

RIPRAP

TOP OF POND/BASIN

4:1

4:1

POND/BASIN

EXISTING GROUND

6
"

5'

FILTER FABRIC

PROFILE VIEW

SIDE VIEW

1
8
"

1
2
"

10'

RIPRAP

10'

VARIES

(SEE PLAN)

3
'

LAST REVISED:

08/10/17

ST04

CATCH BASIN (SUMP)

A

A

NOTES:

1. BASE TO BE GROUTED TO FORM A SMOOTH INVERT TO OUTLET.

2. PIPE CUT-OUTS TO BE LOCATED WHERE REQUIRED.

3. SEE DETAIL ST16 FOR CASTING TYPE.

24"

CONCRETE CATCH

BASIN MANHOLE

AND BASE TO BE

CRETEX TYPE 433B OR

APPROVED EQUAL

MANHOLE COVER TO

BE CRETEX TYPE II WITH

EITHER 27" ROUND OR

24"x36" RECTANGULAR

OPENING

MINIMUM OF TWO 2"

ADJUSTING RINGS

INVERT ELEVATION

(SEE PLAN)

SECTION A-A

PLAN

36"

2' MIN.

LAST REVISED:

08/10/17

ST06a

FILTRATION BASIN

PONDED VOLUME

6" PERFORATED PVC PIPE

SDR 35 (NO SOCK)

MAX IE = 960.5

MINIMUM 3' WIDTH

EL=964.0

EL=962.5

EL=961.5

COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE

(MNDOT 3149.2H)

EL=961.25

MINIMUM 3" OF 

1

4

"

"BUCKSHOT" WASHED ROCK

MN STORM WATER MANUAL

MIX C - 87% SAND, 8% FINES,

AND 5% MNDOT GRADE 2

COMPOST

FILTER MEDIA PERCENTAGES SHALL BE BY VOLUME

SAND SHALL BE FINE FILTER AGGREGATE (MNDOT 3149.2J)

FINES SHALL BE FROM SILT AND CLAY, MAX. CLAY CONTENT OF 5%

STORM SEWER CASTING SCHEDULE

LAST REVISED:

08/11/17

STRUCTURE LOCATION

ST16

CASTING TYPE

CURB & GUTTER

CURB & GUTTER @ LOW POINT

STMH IN PAVEMENT OR GREEN SPACE

CBMH IN PAVEMENT

CBMH IN GREEN SPACE

CBMH IN VALLEY GUTTER

SURMOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTER

AT DRIVEWAY LOCATION

R-3067-L

R-3067-VB

R-1642 STAMPED "STORM SEWER"

R-2535

R-4342

R-3362-L

R-3501-R

1
0
"

3"

5"

27"

LAST REVISED:

08/10/17

ST02

ROUND

CATCH BASIN

CASTING TO BE NEENAH R-3250

OR APPROVED EQUAL

BACK OF CURB

DIA. OF OPENING AS REQUIRED

REINFORCING EQUAL OR

GREATER THAN 27" RCP

PRE-CAST ADJUSTING RINGS

GROUT

AS

SHOWN

3"

MIN. 4"

CONCRETE

27



202

T

T

SEP

SEP

SEP

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

POH

BOAT STORAGE

BUILDING

BOAT STORAGE

BUILDING

ROCK

MULCH

(TYP.)

EDGER (TYP.)

EDGER (TYP.)

18" ROCK MULCH

MAINTENANCE STRIP

(TYP.)

18" ROCK MULCH

MAINTENANCE STRIP

(TYP.)

EDGER (TYP.)

N
:
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
\
D

W
G

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
P

R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
C

-
P

L
P

0
1
.
D

W
G

7

6

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00

INDEPENDENCE, MN

02/09/23

CHF

CHF

TAS

©
 
2
0
2
3
 
W

e
s
t
w

o
o

d
 
P

r
o

f
e
s
s
i
o

n
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
I
n

c
.

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY
LANDSCAPE PLAN

4068 SUNSET DRIVE

SPRING PARK, MN 55384

R
O

C
K

V
A

M
 
B

O
A

T
 
Y

A
R

D
S
 
S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
F
A

C
I
L
I
T
Y

02/09/23

53774
02/09/23

NICHOLAS T. MEYER

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NUMBER:

VERTICAL SCALE:

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:

INITIAL ISSUE:

REVISIONS:

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300
Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343
Toll Free (888) 937-5150

DATE: LICENSE NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME

OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A

DULY LICENSED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER THE LAWS

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Common Ground Alliance

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

20'

4' OR 2'

0' 20' 40' 60'

1" = 20'

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

GROUNDCOVER LEGEND

TOTAL TREES REQUIRED           27 TREES

* MINIMUM LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS IN THE PROTECTIVE BUFFER MUST INCLUDE ONE TREE

(AT LEAST 2.5-INCH CALIPER DECIDUOUS TREE OR SIX-FOOT-HIGH CONIFER TREE) FOR EACH

40 FEET OF PROPERTY LINE.

- PROPERTY LINE LENGTH (UP TO AND INCLUDING WETLAND SETBACK LINE): 1,073 LF

- 1,073 LF / 40 LF = 27 TREES

TOTAL LANDSCAPE PROVIDED:                27 TREES

* OVERSTORY DECIDUOUS TREES:                    15 TREES

* EVERGREEN TREES:           12 TREES

 

OVERALL LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

OVERALL LANDSCAPE PROVISIONS

* ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO BE SODDED

UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

* TURF WITHIN R/W TO BE HYDROSEEDED.

NOTES:

1. TREE LOCATIONS AND SPACING ARE SUBJECT TO

CHANGE BASED ON CONSTRUCTED DRIVEWAY AND

UTILITY LOCATIONS.

2. TREES SHALL BE PLANTED MIN. 5" FROM BACK OF CURB

IN A LOCATION THAT DOES NOT INTERFERE WITH

CURBSTOPS OR INDIVIDUAL SEWER & WATER

CONNECTIONS.

3. NO PLANTING WILL BE INSTALLED UNTIL ALL GRADING

AND CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN THE

IMMEDIATE AREA.

4. DECIDUOUS TREES SHOULD BE LOCATED A MINIMUM  OF

5' OFF ANY UTILITY PIPE AND CONIFEROUS TREES TREES

SHOULD BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 15' OFF ANY

UTILITY PIPE.

5. NO TREE SHOULD BE LOCATED WITHIN 10' OF A

HYDRANT OR 15' FROM A  STREETLIGHT.

6. NO TREES SHOULD BE LOCATED WITHIN A STORM POND

HWL.

7. NO TREES SHOULD BE LOCATED WITHIN STORM POND

ACCESS ROUTE.

8. NO DECIDUOUS TREE WITH 5' OF A SIDEWALK OR TRAIL

AND NO CONIFEROUS TREES WITHIN 20' OF A PROPOSED

SIDEWALK OR TRAIL.

PRELIMINARY PLANT SCHEDULE

DENOTES STORMWATER

NATIVE SEED MIX (33-261)

TOTAL AREA (0.08 AC)

LANDSCAPE

ROCK MULCH

TOTAL AREA (2,456 SF)

BLACK HILLS SPRUCE / PICEA GLAUCA DENSATA
6` HT B&B AS SHOWN H 35`-45`  W 20`-25`

CONCOLOR FIR / ABIES CONCOLOR
6` HT B&B AS SHOWN H 40`-50`  W 15`-30`

WHITE PINE / PINUS STROBUS
6` HT B&B AS SHOWN H 50`-80`  W 25`-40`

ACCOLADE™ ELM / ULMUS X 'MORTON' 2.5" CAL, B&B
AS SHOWN H 70`  W 40`-50`

HACKBERRY / CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS 2.5" CAL, B&B
AS SHOWN H 50`-75` W 50`

RED OAK / QUERCUS RUBRA 2.5" CAL, B&B
AS SHOWN H 50`-70`  W 40`-50`

COMMON / BOTANICAL SIZE SPACING

O.C.

MATURE

SIZE

15

12

 

OVERSTORY

DECIDUOUS

TREES

EVERGREEN

TREES

ABBREVIATIONS:  B.B. = BALLED AND BURLAPPED  CAL. = CALIPER  HT. = HEIGHT  MIN. =MINIMUM  O.C. = ON CENTER

SP. = SPREAD  QTY .= QUANTITY CONT. = CONTAINER

NOTES:  QUANTITIES ON PLAN SUPERSEDE LIST QUANTITIES IN THE EVENT OF A DISCREPANCY. 

28



N
:
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
\
D

W
G

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
P

R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
C

-
P

L
P

0
1
.
D

W
G

7

7

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00

INDEPENDENCE, MN

02/09/23

CHF

CHF

TAS

©
 
2
0
2
3
 
W

e
s
t
w

o
o

d
 
P

r
o

f
e
s
s
i
o

n
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
I
n

c
.

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY

LANDSCAPE NOTES &

DETAILS
4068 SUNSET DRIVE

SPRING PARK, MN 55384

R
O

C
K

V
A

M
 
B

O
A

T
 
Y

A
R

D
S
 
S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
F
A

C
I
L
I
T
Y

02/09/23

53774
02/09/23

NICHOLAS T. MEYER

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

SHEET NUMBER:

VERTICAL SCALE:

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:

INITIAL ISSUE:

REVISIONS:

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300
Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343
Toll Free (888) 937-5150

DATE: LICENSE NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME

OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A

DULY LICENSED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER THE LAWS

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Common Ground Alliance

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

###

## OR ##

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

LAST REVISED:

10/19/18

DECIDUOUS TREE

PLANTING

LA28

N.T.S.

SET ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SUBSOIL

OR COMPACTED SOIL MOUND MATCHING

TREES NATURAL GROUNDLINE WITH FINISHED

SITE GRADE.

REFER TO AMERICAN STANDARD FOR

NURSERY STOCK FOR MINIMUM BALL SIZE.

ROOT FLARE TO BE PLANTED AT OR NEAR

FINISHED GROUNDLINE.

SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF HOLE.

BACKFILL PLANT PIT WITH SPECIFIED BACKFILL

SOIL.

FORM 3" DEEP WATERING BASIN.

PLACE MULCH, DEPTH AS SPECIFIED, OVER

PLANT PITS - DO NOT PILE AGAINST TRUNK.

TREE WRAP MATERIAL FROM GROUNDLINE

UPWARD TO FIRST BRANCHES, AS REQUIRED.

PRUNE OUT MISDIRECTED BRANCHES.

PROVIDE ONE CENTRAL LEADER.

GUYING AND STAKING, AS REQUIRED, FOR

ONE (1) YEAR ON ALL DECIDUOUS AND

CONIFEROUS TREES:

TOP STAKES 5' ABOVE GROUND (MAX.)

OR TO FIRST BRANCH.  BOTTOM OF

STAKE 3' (MIN.) BELOW GROUND.

STAKING POSTS TO BE 2"X2" STAINED

WOOD OR PAINTED STEEL DELINEATOR

POSTS.  PLACE 3 POSTS EQUIDISTANT

AROUND AND OUTSIDE ROOT BALL.

SECURE TREE TO POSTS WITH 16" LONG

POLYPROPYLENE OR POLYETHYLENE, 40

MIL., 1.5" WIDE STRAP.

2X

BALL

DIAMETER

SET ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SUBSOIL

OR COMPACTED SOIL MOUND MATCHING

TREES NATURAL GROUNDLINE WITH

FINISHED SITE GRADE.

REFER TO AMERICAN STANDARD FOR

NURSERY STOCK FOR MINIMUM BALL SIZE.

ROOT FLARE TO BE PLANTED AT OR NEAR

FINISHED GROUNDLINE.

SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF HOLE.

BACKFILL PLANT PIT WITH SPECIFIED

BACKFILL SOIL.

FORM 3" DEEP WATERING BASIN.

PLACE MULCH, DEPTH AS SPECIFIED, OVER

PLANT PITS - DO NOT PILE AGAINST TRUNK.

PRUNE OUT MISDIRECTED BRANCHES.

PROVIDE ONE CENTRAL LEADER.

GUYING AND STAKING, AS REQUIRED, FOR

ONE (1) YEAR ON ALL DECIDUOUS AND

CONIFEROUS TREES:

TOP STAKES 5' ABOVE GROUND (MAX.)

OR TO FIRST BRANCH.  BOTTOM OF

STAKE 3' (MIN.) BELOW GROUND.

STAKING POSTS TO BE 2"X2" STAINED

WOOD OR PAINTED STEEL DELINEATOR

POSTS.  PLACE 3 POSTS EQUIDISTANT

AROUND AND OUTSIDE ROOT BALL.

SECURE TREE TO POSTS WITH 16" LONG

POLYPROPYLENE OR POLYETHYLENE, 40

MIL., 1.5" WIDE STRAP.

2XBALL

DIAMETER

LAST REVISED:

10/19/18

EVERGREEN TREE

PLANTING

LA29

N.T.S.

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT COMMON GROUND ALLIANCE AT 811 OR CALL811.COM TO VERIFY LOCATIONS OF ALL

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF ANY PLANTS OR LANDSCAPE MATERIAL.

2. ACTUAL LOCATION OF PLANT MATERIAL IS SUBJECT TO FIELD AND SITE CONDITIONS.

3. NO PLANTING WILL BE INSTALLED UNTIL ALL GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN THE IMMEDIATE AREA.

4. ALL SUBSTITUTIONS MUST BE APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF ANY BID AND/OR QUOTE

BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ONE YEAR GUARANTEE OF ALL PLANT MATERIALS.  THE GUARANTEE BEGINS ON THE DATE OF

THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S OR OWNER'S WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE OF THE INITIAL PLANTING.  REPLACEMENT PLANT MATERIAL

SHALL HAVE A ONE YEAR GUARANTEE COMMENCING UPON PLANTING.

6. ALL PLANTS TO BE SPECIMEN GRADE, MINNESOTA-GROWN AND/OR HARDY.  SPECIMEN GRADE SHALL ADHERE TO, BUT IS NOT

LIMITED BY, THE FOLLOWING STANDARDS:

ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FREE FROM DISEASE, PESTS, WOUNDS, SCARS, ETC.

ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FREE FROM NOTICEABLE GAPS, HOLES, OR DEFORMITIES.

ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FREE FROM BROKEN OR DEAD BRANCHES.

ALL PLANTS SHALL HAVE HEAVY, HEALTHY BRANCHING AND LEAFING.

CONIFEROUS TREES SHALL HAVE AN ESTABLISHED MAIN LEADER AND A HEIGHT TO WIDTH RATIO OF NO LESS THAN 5:3.

7. PLANTS TO MEET AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK (ANSI Z60.1-2014 OR MOST CURRENT VERSION) REQUIREMENTS

FOR SIZE AND TYPE SPECIFIED.

8.  PLANTS TO BE INSTALLED AS PER MNLA & ANSI STANDARD PLANTING PRACTICES.

9. PLANTS SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY PLANTED UPON ARRIVAL AT SITE.  PROPERLY HEEL-IN MATERIALS IF NECESSARY; TEMPORARY

ONLY.

10. PRIOR TO PLANTING, FIELD VERIFY THAT THE ROOT COLLAR/ROOT FLAIR IS LOCATED AT THE TOP OF THE BALLED & BURLAP

TREE.  IF THIS IS NOT THE CASE, SOIL SHALL BE REMOVED DOWN TO THE ROOT COLLAR/ROOT FLAIR.  WHEN THE BALLED &

BURLAP TREE IS PLANTED, THE ROOT COLLAR/ROOT FLAIR SHALL BE EVEN OR SLIGHTLY ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

11. OPEN TOP OF BURLAP ON BB MATERIALS; REMOVE POT ON POTTED PLANTS; SPLIT AND BREAK APART PEAT POTS.

12. PRUNE PLANTS AS NECESSARY - PER STANDARD NURSERY PRACTICE AND TO CORRECT POOR BRANCHING OF EXISTING AND

PROPOSED TREES.

13. THE NEED FOR SOIL AMENDMENTS SHALL BE DETERMINED UPON SITE SOIL CONDITIONS PRIOR TO PLANTING.  LANDSCAPE

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR THE NEED OF ANY SOIL AMENDMENTS.

14. BACKFILL SOIL AND TOPSOIL TO ADHERE TO MN/DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION 3877 (SELECT TOPSOIL BORROW) AND TO BE

EXISTING TOP SOIL FROM SITE FREE OF ROOTS, ROCKS LARGER THAN ONE INCH, SUBSOIL DEBRIS, AND LARGE WEEDS UNLESS

SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  MINIMUM 4" DEPTH TOPSOIL FOR ALL LAWN GRASS AREAS AND 12" DEPTH TOPSOIL FOR TREE, SHRUBS,

AND PERENNIALS.

15. MULCH TO BE AT ALL TREE, SHRUB, PERENNIAL, AND MAINTENANCE AREAS.  TREE AND SHRUB PLANTING BEDS SHALL HAVE 4"

DEPTH OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH.  SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH TO BE USED AROUND ALL PLANTS WITHIN TURF

AREAS.  PERENNIAL AND ORNAMENTAL GRASS BEDS SHALL HAVE 2" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH.  MULCH TO BE

FREE OF DELETERIOUS MATERIAL AND COLORED RED, OR APPROVED EQUAL.  ROCK MULCH TO BE BUFF LIMESTONE, 1 1/2" TO

3" DIAMETER, AT MINIMUM 3" DEPTH, OR APPROVED EQUAL.  ROCK MULCH TO BE ON COMMERCIAL GRADE FILTER FABRIC, BY

TYPAR, OR APPROVED EQUAL WITH NO EXPOSURE.  MULCH AND FABRIC TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

MULCH TO MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS (WHERE APPLICABLE).

16. EDGING TO BE COMMERCIAL GRADE VALLEY-VIEW BLACK DIAMOND (OR EQUAL) POLY EDGING OR SPADED EDGE, AS

INDICATED.  POLY EDGING SHALL BE PLACED WITH SMOOTH CURVES AND STAKED WITH METAL SPIKES NO GREATER THAN 4

FOOT ON CENTER WITH BASE OF TOP BEAD AT GRADE, FOR MOWERS TO CUT ABOVE WITHOUT DAMAGE.  UTILIZE CURBS AND

SIDEWALKS FOR EDGING WHERE POSSIBLE.  SPADED EDGE TO PROVIDE V-SHAPED DEPTH AND WIDTH TO CREATE SEPARATION

BETWEEN MULCH AND GRASS.  INDIVIDUAL TREE, SHRUB, OR RAIN-GARDEN BEDS TO BE SPADED EDGE, UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.  EDGING TO MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS (WHERE APPLICABLE).

17. ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO BE SODDED OR SEEDED, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  PARKING LOT ISLANDS TO BE SODDED WITH

SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND ALL TREES AND SHRUBS.  SOD TO BE STANDARD MINNESOTA GROWN AND HARDY

BLUEGRASS MIX, FREE OF LAWN WEEDS.  ALL TOPSOIL AREAS TO BE RAKED TO REMOVE DEBRIS AND ENSURE DRAINAGE.

SLOPES OF 3:1 OR GREATER SHALL BE STAKED.  SEED AS SPECIFIED AND PER MN/DOT SPECIFICATIONS.  IF NOT INDICATED ON

LANDSCAPE PLAN, SEE EROSION CONTROL PLAN.

18. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NECESSARY WATERING OF PLANT MATERIALS UNTIL THE PLANT IS FULLY ESTABLISHED OR

IRRIGATION SYSTEM IS OPERATIONAL.  OWNER WILL NOT PROVIDE WATER FOR CONTRACTOR.

19. REPAIR, REPLACE, OR PROVIDE SOD/SEED AS REQUIRED FOR ANY ROADWAY BOULEVARD AREAS ADJACENT TO THE SITE

DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION.

20. REPAIR ALL DAMAGE TO PROPERTY FROM PLANTING OPERATIONS AT NO COST TO OWNER.

21. RAIN GARDEN NOTE: PROVIDE AND INSTALL EROSION CONTROL BLANKET AT RAIN GARDEN AREA SIDE SLOPES AFTER ALL

PLANTING HAVE BEEN INSTALLED.  BLANKET TO BE ONE SEASON GEOJUTE, MN/DOT CATEGORY 2 (STRAW 1S, WOOD FIBER 1S),

OR APPROVED EQUAL.  BLANKET TO BE OVERLAPPED BY 4" AND ANCHORED BY SOD STAPLES.  PLACE BLANKET PERPENDICULAR

TO THE SLOPE.  TRENCH IN EDGES OF BLANKET AREA TO PREVENT UNDER MINING.  PROVIDE SILT FENCE AT TOP OF SLOPE AS

NEEDED.  SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH TO MATCH OTHER PROJECT PLANTING MULCH.  PLACE 4" DEPTH OF MULCH AT ALL

PLANTING AND EROSION CONTROL BLANKET AREA (NO FILTER FABRIC).  SEE RAIN GARDEN DETAIL FOR FURTHER

INFORMATION.  RAIN GARDEN TO PROVIDE PROPER INFILTRATION AND DRAINAGE REQUIREMENTS PER ENGINEERS APPROVAL.

PLANTING NOTES PLANTING DETAILS

29



9
6
8

9
6
6

9

6

2

9

6

0

968

960

972

9

7

0

9
6
8

9

6

6

9
6
6

9
7
0

12,000 SF

BOAT STORAGE

FFE=970

12,000 SF

BOAT STORAGE

FFE=970

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

FILTRATION

BASIN

OUTLET=964.0

BOT=962.5

HWL=965.2

BERM=966.0

200

202

FO

T

T

T

SEP

MAIL

SEP

SEP

S
T
O

X

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

POH

X

R

2

8

.

0

0

'

R

2

8

.

0

0

'

20.00' F-F

24.00' F-F

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

9
6
8

9
6
6

9

6

2

9

6

0

968

960

972

9

7

0

9
6
8

9

6

6

9
6
6

9
7
0

12,000 SF

BOAT STORAGE

FFE=970

12,000 SF

BOAT STORAGE

FFE=970

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

FILTRATION

BASIN

OUTLET=964.0

BOT=962.5

HWL=965.2

BERM=966.0

200

202

FO

T

T

T

SEP

MAIL

SEP

SEP

S
T
O

X

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H

P
O

H

POH

X

R

2

8

.

0

0

'

R

2

8

.

0

0

'

20.00' F-F

24.00' F-F

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

Phone (952) 937-5150 12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite #300
Fax (952) 937-5822 Minnetonka, MN 55343
Toll Free (888) 937-5150

SHEET NUMBER:

FIELD WORK DATE: .

.FIELD CREW:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:

N
:
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
\
D

W
G

\
E
X

H
I
B

I
T
\
0
0
4
0
8
3
5
.
0
0
S
-
T
U

R
N

I
N

G
 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
.
D

W
G

03/17/2023

R
O

C
K

V
A

M
 
B

O
A

T
 
Y

A
R

D
S
 
S
T
O

R
A

G
E
 
F
A

C
I
L
I
T
Y

INDEPENDENCE, MN

ROCKVAM BOAT YARDS STORAGE

FACILITY

4068 SUNSET DRIVE

SPRING PARK, MN 55384

TURNING MOVEMENT

EXHIBIT

1

.

.

.

SEASONAL INVESTMENTS, LLC

0' 50' 100'

© 2023 Westwood Professional Services, Inc.

Common Ground Alliance

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

PROJECT NUMBER: 0040835.00

: 37.8Steering Angle

8.00 24.00

8.50

8.50

6.0

Pumper Fire Truck

feet

:

:

:

Width

Track

Lock to Lock Time

44.00

30



31



32



4082	Woodhill	Drive	CUP	Request	–	Planning	Commission	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 

Request for a Conditional Use Permit to Allow an Attached Accessory Dwelling Unit 
on the Property Located at 4082 Woodhill Drive 

 
To: Planning Commission 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: April 18, 2023 

Applicant: Jeffrey Pitzenberger 

Owner: Jeffrey Pitzenberger 

Location: 4082 Woodhill Drive 

 
 
Request: 
Jeffrey Pitzenberger (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions for 
the property located at 4082 Woodhill Drive, Independence, MN (PID No. 01-118-24-34-0012): 
 

a. A conditional use permit to allow an attached accessory dwelling unit (ADU) to be 
located on the subject proprty. 

 
 
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located at 4082 Woodhill Drive which is on the northeast corner of CSAH 11 
and Woodhill Drive.  The property has frontage on Lake Sarah and comprised of mostly upland 
with a wetland on the east side of the property.  A new single-family home is proposed on the 
property.   
 
 

Property Information: 4082 Woodhill Drive 
 Zoning: RR-Rural Residential (Shoreland Overlay) 
 Comprehensive Plan: RR-Rural Residential 
 Acreage: 2.00 acres 
 

 
 
 

 
 

33



4082	Woodhill	Drive	CUP	Request	–	Planning	Commission	 Page	2	
 

 
4082 Woodhill Drive 

  
 
Discussion: 
The applicant approached the City about the possibility of constructing a detached accessory 
dwelling unit on this property prior to acquiring the property.  The property was recently platted 
as a part of the Lake Sarah Hill Subdivision.  It was noted that the City’s current ordinance does 

34



4082	Woodhill	Drive	CUP	Request	–	Planning	Commission	 Page	3	
 

not allow detached accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) on properties less than 2.5 acres.  For 
properties less than 2.5 acres, ADU’s are required to be attached to the principal structure.   
 
The applicant applied for a Variance and CUP seeking approval of a detached ADU on the 
property.  The Planning Commission did review the request in 2022, but the applicant ultimately 
withdrew the application.  The applicant has revised the plans and request for an attached ADU 
to be connected to the proposed new single-family home on the property.   
 
The City considers allowing ADU’s as a conditional use in the RR-Rrural Residential zoning 
district.  The applicant has prepared plans for the development of the property which include 
both the principal and now attached accessory dwelling unit.  The City has adopted standards 
requiring the ADU to be proportional and subordinate to the principal structure.  The proposed 
principal house and accessory dwelling unit have the following specifics: 
 
Principal Home: 
 

3316 SF 1st and 2nd Floors (33% * 3316 = 1094 SF) 
 
Accessory Dwelling Unit: 
 

Allowed SF 
1094 SF allowed 

 
Proposed SF 
1,094 SF* (Excludes attached garage) 
*Applicant has noted that the garage will be 453 SF. 
 
Setbacks  Required  Proposed 
Front Yard  85’ from CL  100’+ 
Side Yard  30’   34’ (north side) 
Rear Yard  100’ from OHWL 200’+ 

 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit is comprised 2 bedrooms, 2 baths, kitchen, family room, 
dining room, mud room, mechanical and attached garage.  In order for the City to consider a 
CUP for an accessory dwelling unit, the applicant will need to demonstrate how they meet all 
applicable criteria for granting a conditional use permit and for an accessory dwelling unit.  The 
City has criteria broadly relating to Conditional Use Permits and then more focused criteria 
relating specifically to accessory dwelling units.   
 
An accessory dwelling unit must meet the following criteria:   
 
Subd. 2.  "Accessory Dwelling Unit."  A secondary dwelling unit that is: 

(a) Physically attached to or within a single-family dwelling unit or within a detached a 
accessory building that has a principal structure on the parcel; and 
 

35



4082	Woodhill	Drive	CUP	Request	–	Planning	Commission	 Page	4	
 

The applicant is proposing to construct an attached accessory dwelling unit as a 
result of the property being less than 2.5 acres. 
 

(b) Subordinate in size to the single-family dwelling unit; and 
 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be subordinate in size to the single-
family dwelling unit. 
 

(c) Fully separated from the single-family dwelling unit by means of a wall or floor, with 
or without a door; and 
 
The proposed accessory dwelling unit would be fully separated by the attached 
garage that would separate the principal home and the proposed accessory 
structure.  
 

(d) Architecturally compatible with the principal structure (using materials, finishes, style 
and colors similar to the principal structure); and 
 
The proposed ADU has been designed to be architecturally similar to the 
proposed principal structure.  Architecture and materials appear to be consistent 
with the existing home. 
 

(e) The lesser of 33% of the above ground living area of the principal structure or 1,200 
square feet, and no less than 400 square feet; and  
 
The principal structure is proposed to be 3,316 square feet of above ground living 
space not including the walkout basement.  33% of 3,316 square feet equals 1,094 
square feet.  The applicant has proposed a 1,094 SF detached accessory structure.  
  

(f) Not in excess of the maximum square footage for accessory structures as permitted in 
this code; and  
 
The existing property is 2.5 acres in size and is limited to 1,850 square feet for the 
total square footage for all detached accessory structures.  The proposed attached 
structure would not count towards the total detached accessory structure SF. 
 

(g) Has permanent provisions for cooking, living and sanitation; and 
 
The applicant is proposing to construct permanent provisions for cooking; living 
and sanitation (see attached depiction). 
 

(h) Has no more than 2 bedrooms; and 
 
The applicant is proposing to have two (2) bedrooms within the proposed 
accessory dwelling unit. 
 

36



4082	Woodhill	Drive	CUP	Request	–	Planning	Commission	 Page	5	
 

(i) Limited to relatives of the homesteaded owner occupants or the homesteaded owners 
of the principal structure.  The total number of individuals that reside in both the 
principal dwelling unit and accessory dwelling unit may not exceed the number that 
is allowed by the building code; and 
 
The owner of the property is proposing that the accessory dwelling unit will be 
occupied by his family. 
 

(j) Uses the existing on-site septic systemb or an approved holding tank; and 
 
The proposed accessory structure will be connected to the City sewer line that 
will also serve the principal residence.  
 

(k) Respectful of the future subdivision of the property and the primary and secondary 
septic sites.  The City may require a sketch of the proposed future subdivision of a 
property; and  
 
The accessory structure does not impede the ability of the owner to subdivide the 
property in the future or utilize a secondary septic site.    
 

(l) In compliance with the adopted building code relating to all aspects of the dwelling 
unit. 
 
The applicant will be required to obtain a building permit for all proposed 
improvements. 

 
a  On lots less than 2.5 acres, the accessory dwelling unit must be attached to the 
principal dwelling unit or located/constructed within an existing detached accessory 
structure that meets all criteria of this section. 
 
b The existing on-site septic system will be required to be inspected by the City to ensure 
compliance with all applicable standards.  Any system that does not meet all applicable 
standards shall be brought into compliance as a part of the approval of the accessory 
dwelling unit.   
 

The applicant has discussed the proposed improvements to the property with the City.  The 
applicant has submitted a site survey, floor plan and illustrations of the proposed ADU and 
principal structure.  The accessory dwelling unit will need to meet all applicable building codes 
and building regulations.   
 
The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance (Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 
 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general 
welfare of occupants of surrounding lands. 
 

37



4082	Woodhill	Drive	CUP	Request	–	Planning	Commission	 Page	6	
 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other 
property in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the 
normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property 
for uses predominant in the area. 

 
3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate 

anticipated traffic. 
4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed 

use. 
 

5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site 
sewage treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is 
available to protect the city form pollution hazards. 

 
6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, 

natural topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar 
ecological and environmental features. 

 
7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, 

dust, noise, or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 
 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of 
Independence. 

 
9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density 

standards. 
 
There are several items that could be considered by the City: 
 

1. The applicant has revised the proposed ADU to be an attached structure in compliance 
with the applicable standards for lots less than 2.5 acres.  

 
Ultimately the City will need to find that the criteria for granting a conditional use permit have 
been satisfied by the applicant.  This property is 2 acres in size and is limited to an attached ADU 
in accordance with the City standards.  The proposed new home and ADU appear to be designed 
so that they are compatible and consistent.  
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 

The City has not received any written comments regarding the proposed conditional use permit to 
allow an accessory dwelling unit. 
 
 
 

38



4082	Woodhill	Drive	CUP	Request	–	Planning	Commission	 Page	7	
 

Recommendation: 

Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Commission for the requested Conditional Use 
Permit with the following findings and conditions: 

 

1. The proposed Conditional Use Permit request meets all applicable conditions and 
restrictions stated in Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

2. The Conditional Use Permit will be issued subject to the following items being completed:    
 
a. The Conditional Use Permit will be subject to the applicant constructing the principal 

structure on the property and successfully obtaining and completing a building permit 
for all applicable improvements required for a dwelling unit. 

 
b. The ADU can be no greater than 1,094 SF.   

 
c. The ADU will be constructed in accordance with the approved plans. 

 
d. The ADU will meet all applicable setbacks of the City’s zoning ordinance.  An 

updated and signed survey confirming and detailing all proposed building setbacks and 
grading and drainage will be required to be submitted prior to issuance of the building 
permit. 

 
3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 

conditional use permit. 
  

 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
2. Site Plan 
3. Proposed Accessory Dwelling Unit Floor Plan 
4. ADU Illustration 
5. Principal Home First Floor Plan and Elevation 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

39



Planning & Zoning Department:  Application for Planning Consideration (2019) 

 

 

City of Independence 

The Independence City Code was established to protect both current and future residents from the negative 

impacts of improper development and to ensure a positive future for the city.  The land use application review is 

the mechanism that allows the city to examine proposed uses to ensure compatibility with the surrounding 

environment, natural or otherwise. It is important to understand that a proposed use may be acceptable in some 

circumstances, but unacceptable in others—all applications are viewed on a case-by-case basis. 

          Request: _____________________________________ 

  

 _____________________________________________ 

  

 _____________________________________________ 

  

 _____________________________________________ 

  

 _____________________________________________ 

  

 _____________________________________________ 

 

  

 

 Site Address or Property Identification Number(s): 

  

 _____________________________________________ 

  

 _____________________________________________ 

 

 _____________________________________________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Appeal 

 

  Comprehensive Plan Amendment  

 

  Concept Plan 

 

  Conditional Use Permit 

  ___  Residential   

  ___  Commercial/Light Industrial 

               ___  Telecommunications 

 ___  Agriculture 

 ___  Home Occupation 

 ___  Non-Conforming Use 

 ___  Guest/Bunk House 

 ___  Institutional 

 ___  CUP Amendment 

 

  Extension Request 

 

  Final Plat 

 

  Interim Use Permit 

 

  Lot Consolidation 

 

  Minor Subdivision (Survey) 

 ___  Lot Subdivision 

 ___  Lot Combination 

 ___  Lot Line Rearrangement 

 

  Moving Buildings 

 

  Preliminary Plat 

  

  Rezoning 

 

  Site Plan Review (Commercial) 

 

  Vacation 

 

  Variance 

 ___  Subdivision Regulations 

 ___  Zoning  

 ___ Road Frontage 

 

  Zoning Text Amendment 

 

*Please check all that apply 

Office Use Only       ____________       
            Date 
 

________________________       __________________ 

Application Amount      Application Check # 

 

____________________      __________________ 

Escrow Paid       Escrow Check # 

 

____________________      __________________ 

Date Accepted by Planner      Accepted By 

___________________________________ 
City Planner 

 

NOTE:  Minnesota State Statute 15.99 requires local 

governments to review an application within 15 days of its 

submission to determine if an application is complete and/or 

if additional information is needed to adequately review the 

subject request.  To ensure an expedited review, applicants 

shall schedule a pre-application meeting with the City 

Planner/Administrator at least one week prior to submittal.  

Most applications have a review period of 60 days, with the 

City’s ability to extend an additional 60 days if necessary 

due to insufficient information or schedule.  
 

40

kasey
Text Box
X

kasey
Text Box
X

kasey
Text Box
4082 Woodhill Drive, Independence, MN 55357

kasey
Text Box
Conditional Use Permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit attached to the garage of the main dwelling. Refer to Conceptual Planning Diagram and Exterior 3D Massing Study for details.



 

 

***Note:  All parties with a fee interest in the real estate must sign this application before the City will review for 

consideration! 

 

Applicant Information: Owner Information (if different than applicant) 

 

Name: ____________________________________ Name:____________________________________ 

 

Address: __________________________________ Address: __________________________________ 

 

City, State, Zip: ____________________________ City, State, Zip: ____________________________ 

 

Phone: ___________________________________ Phone: ___________________________________ 

 

Email: ___________________________________ Email: ____________________________________ 

  

Signature: _______________________________ Signature: ________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

Checklist:  Please review the checklist that goes with the request(s) as all materials in the checklist unless 

waived by the City. 

 

Review Deadline and Timeline: All applications must be received by the deadline according to the schedule 

attached hereto.  Failure to submit by the date shown will result in a delay in the scheduling of the application 

review by Planning Commission and City Council. 

 

Application for Planning Consideration Fee Statement 
 

The City of Independence has an annually adopted fee schedule.  However, projects of large scope that include 

two or more requests will be required to provide a larger deposit than the resolution sets forth as set by the City 

Administrator.  The fees collected for land use projects are collected as deposits.  All invoices associated with 

each land employ application will be billed to the applicant within 30 days upon receipt by the City for each 

project.  The City of Independence often utilizes consulting firms to assist in the review of projects.  The 

consultant and City rates are shown at the bottom of this form.  By signing this form, the applicant recognizes 

that he/she is solely responsible for any and all fees associated with the land use application from the plan 

review stage to the construction monitoring stage through to the release of any financial guarantee for an 

approved project.  If a project is denied by the City Council or withdrawn by the applicant, the fees associated 

for the project until such denial or withdrawal, remain the applicant’s responsibility. 

 

I UNDERSTAND THE FEE STATEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS LAND 

USE APPLICATION: 

 

Applicant Signature: _______________________________ 

Date: _______________________ 

 

Owner Signature (if different):__________________________________ 

Date:______________________  

41

kasey
Text Box
Kasey Johnson

kasey
Text Box
2150 3rd St, Ste 5

kasey
Text Box
White Bear Lake, MN 55110

kasey
Text Box
612-201-3504

kasey
Text Box
kasey@bluepencilcollective.com

kasey
Text Box
03/10/2023

kasey
Text Box
03/10/2023

kasey
Text Box
Jeff and Leah Pitzenberger

kasey
Text Box
4082 Woodhill Drive

kasey
Text Box
Independence, MN 55357

kasey
Text Box
763-458-3907

kasey
Text Box
pitzy20@hotmail.com



San. MH
Rim=1009.17
Inv=996.25

10
10

996

998

10
0

2

1008

10 0 6

993.00
995.01

993.27

993.17

993.23

991.18

993.73 992.28
992.73

992.72

986.06

10
04

.3
4

10
05

.7
4

1004.07

99
2.

21

Area = 2.0± ACRES TO O.H.W.L.

99
0

1000

984

986

988
99

2

994996998

10
02

10
04

10
06

10
08

99
0

10
00

99
2

99
4

996

99
8

10
02100410061008

10
06

10
10

1006

10
08

980

990

982

984

986

988

992

99
4

99
699

8

98
6

Inv=1007.02

Inv=1006.17

12" C.M.P.

LOT   3

Shoreline

Ordinary High Water
Level

Boulder Wall

Wood Wall

Bl
oc

k 
W

al
l

Rip Rap

Mulch

Mulch

SandBeach

Landscape Rock

Landscape Rock

Gravel

Gravel

Gravel

Gravel

G
ra

ve
l

Shed

G
ar

ag
e

House

Shed

Wood Steps

Co
nc

re
te

Shed Corner 0.5' NW
of line

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00 20.00

20.00

20.00

44.0

32.7

6.0

17.3

6.0

33.0

32.015.0

2.0

9.0

6.0

9.0

2.0

25.5

12.0

16.5

2.0

8.0

Proposed

Ret. Wall

Proposed

Ret. Wall

Proposed
Ret. Wall

98
6

992

98
8990

1002

99
4

992

996
9981000

1004
1002

1004

10
04

1006

1008

1006

994

1000

4" Sch.
40 PVC

1000 gal Pump Tank

Top of Tank = 996.50

Insulate where cover is

less than 6 feet

1 1/2" PVC

Install pipe with min. 2% slope to

drain back to pump tank

Approximate Existing Sanitary

Sewer Service
Connect to existing service

1

2

1

Proposed House

Proposed Driveway

Proposed House

(UNDER

CONSTRUCTION)

Stoop

Screen

Porch
W

alk

Deck

LAKE  SARAH  HILL

Well Area

Survey Line

Ordinary High Water
Level

Drainage and UtilityEasement

Drainage and UtilityEasement

15" C.M.P. Culvert

1008.0

999.1

1007.7

1007.7

10
03

.5

5.
0%

X

X1002.8 X

Proposed Driveway

Driveway

1002.5 X

99
5.0

X

10.5%

X

99
2.

7
4.

7%

99
4.0

X

993.0 X

99
2.

5

X

X993.2

1003.2

1000.0X

1006.1X

1004.0

1003.5

X

X

1008.0

999.1

10
03

.1
X

10
07

.5
X

10
09

.0

X

10
09

.0

X

1.3%

1.
0%

4.0%

2.0%

1005.0

X

1005.5

X

1005.0X

Row of Trees

Boulder Wall

Block Wall

Bl
oc

k 
W

al
l

Remove WoodWall

Remove
Wood

Wall

Remove Block Wall

Remove Block

Wall

Remove Block

Wall

Gravel

Gravel

Gravel

Remove Gravel

Drive
way

Edge of Gravel

LAKE  SARAH
Water Elevation = 979.7 (NAVD88) on 4/15/2021
Highest Known Water Elevation = 983.0 (NAVD88)
According to State of Minnesota, Dept. of Natural Resources

Present Shoreline of Lake Sarah

W
O

O
D

H
IL

L 
  D

R
IV

E

W

S

EE

W

W

PROPOSED ADU 
(1094 SF FINISHED)

PROPOSED ADU 
(453 SF UNFINISHED)

DISCLAIMER: This map was created for reference purposes only and does not represent a land survey. No 
liability is assumed for the accuracy of the data delineated herein, either expressed of implied by BPC®.

PRIMARY DWELLING 
(1902 SF - CURRENTLY UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION)

SHEET NUMBER

TITLE

Approved
Checked
Drawn
Job Number

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

PROJECT

BLUE-PENCIL COLLECTIVE
2150 3rd St. Suite 5

White Bear Lake, MN 55110

(651) 968-4487
hello@bluepencilcollective.com
www.bluepencilcollective.com

PROJECT ISSUE

A01.01

ADU CONDITIONAL
USE PERMIT -
CONCEPTUAL

PLANNING DIAGRAM

RN/KJ
KJ

00097.01

RN

PITZENBERGER
RESIDENCE

Copyright © 2020 BLUE - PENCIL COLLECTIVE

FOR REFERENCE
ONLY

FO
R 

RE
FE

RE
N

C
E 

O
N

LY
 -

M
A

RC
H

 10
, 2

02
3

1" = 30'-0"A1 ADU CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT - CONCEPTUAL PLANNING DIAGRAM

42



1

RE: ADU Conditional Use Permit

Prepared by:
Blue Pencil Collective®, LLC
Architecture + Design Agency for the Pitzenberger Residence

Note: All finishes to match the Proposed Primary Dwelling.

Hardy Board, 4‘ x 8‘ flat panels, painted Sherwin Williams 
SW6990 Caviar, typical throughout

Black asphalt shingles

Metal woodgrain cedar

PROPOSED ADU
(1094 SF FINISHED)

PROPOSED ADU
(453 SF UNFINISHED)

PRIMARY DWELLING 
(1902 SF CURRENTLY UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

Planning & Zoning Department: Application for Planning Consideration

www.bluepencilcollective.com .
R

2150 3rd Street, White Bear Lake MN 55110 (651) 968-4487 

BLUE PENCIL COLLECTIVE   -  2022 copyright. All rights reserved. 

 .
43



~ 

12 
51 

~ 
I• • I 

MATCH WINDOW BELOW 

+ 
b 

I 

~ 

·-
I • •I 

MATCH WINDOW BELOW 

CEDAR RENDITIONS 
BY ROYAL VERTICAL 
WOOD LOOK SIDING 

~11 
1. ·I 

MATCH WINDOW BELOW 

/"'~ 
.,. 

.,. .,. _... 
GUTTERS ---- ~ . .,. 

~ 
~ 

~ 

- BY ROYAL VERTICAL 51 -~ WOOD LOOK SIDING 

"" .. "" ::-........- - .. , ".SPHAL T SHINGLES ., .,,. ... '1.... .....""'- ..... 
- .,. .,. " -I' - r-.., ~ ~ .,. -.,. 

V 
/ . .,. 

r-' .,. 
r- ' 

',,,,, ~ 
[7 12" LP. FASCIA BOARD 

.... -, WITH GUTTERS 

12 CEDAR RENDITIONS 

~ ',_ 

~ 

□ ~- ... r-, .. "" 1 ".> ASPHALT SHINGLEv ~---- ' ~ -..,~io 
12" LP. TRIM 

~ ~ 
BOARDS 

12" LP. FASCIA BOARD -WITH GUTTERS \. 

12" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

10" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

LP. PANELS WITH 
METAL CHANEL 

12" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

GRADE (VARIES) 

• II- ->-6" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

6'-8" 

CEDAR RENDITIONS 
BY ROYAL VERTICAL 
WOOD LOOK SIDING 

GUTTERS 

b 
I co 

b D D I co 
D D 
D D 

= D D 
co 

I 

C'") 

LP. PANELS WITH 
-METAL CHANEL 

FRONT ELEVATION 1/4"= 1-0 
@ COPYRIGHT BEYOND DESIGN ARCHITECTURE 

12 
51 

~ 

~ 

---ASPHALT SHINGLES .. -- ~~ .......... 
12" LP. FASCIA BOARD 
WITH GUTTERS 

'C 

12" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

L.P. PANELS WITH 
METAL CHANEL 

12" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

ft 
WESTBURY ALUMINUM 
RAILING 36" HIGH 
MAX 4" SPACING 

GRADE (VARIES) 

6X6 CEDAR__,, 
POSTS 

GRADE (VARIES) 

GRADE (VARIES) 

-- -~-- • 

~~ 
.._ 

"' .... ho. 

~~ ~~ 
GUTTERS 

6" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

n I 
■ .. I 

I= I= I= I= 

■ 

-

.,..,. 

6'-8" 

~ I~ -

II 

6X l CEDAR 

"'"' 
PC STS 

D "' • "' D "' - - " 

~- ~ D 
~= D 

'" -
6x6 POSTS SMOOTH PANEL GARAGE 

DOORS VERIFY DESIGN LAKE ELEVATION 1/4" = 1'-0" 
@ COPYRIGHT BEYOND DESIGN ARCHITECTURE 

=GUTTERS 
I ' 

' WESTBURY ALUMINUM 
RAILING 36" HIGH 
MAX 4" SP,t,.CING 

6X6 LP. WRAP POS 
W/ METAi SCREENS 

WESTBUR ALUMINUM 
RAILING 3 "HIGH 
MAX4"SP, CING 

-
6X6CI DAR 
POSTl 

c-

LP. PANELS WITH 
METAL CHANEL 

6" LP. TRIM 
BOARDS 

12" LP. TRIM 
6'-8" BOARDS 

,_ -

GRADE (VARIES) 

CEDAR RENDITIONS 
BY ROYAL VERTICAL 
WOOD LOOK SIDING 

- /SPHAL T SHINGLES 
1.:: ~ ~ 

5· ~_...,.."'."' Y' ~~~ 12" LP. FASCIA BOARD 

1/ ~ [7 

12" L.P. TRIM 
6" LP. TRIM BOARDS 
BOARDS 

s 

= L.P. PANELS WITH 0 
METAL CHANEL I co 

~6" LP. TRIM 
12" LP. TRIM 
BOARD3 6'-8" BOARDS co 

I 

C'") 

GRADE (VARIES) 

[ 
"\) RETAIN GRADE 

[ l. AS REQ'D. 

[ ' 
BY OTHERS 

j) 

~ 
RETAIN GRADE 
AS REQ'D. 

---~ BY OTHERS 

PLAN NUMBER 

22-041 

DATE 

6-28-2022 
REVISIONS 

7-22-2022 

ci 
0 
LL 
UJ 
(.) 
z 
UJ 
Cl 
Cl) 
UJ 
0:: 

~ 
~ 
::::, 
Cll 

612-597-4269 

SHEET 

50F 9 

Glazing requiredGlazing required

44



= 
-.....

, I , I , I , I , I I , I , I 

' 

- - - - - - - -- - - - - - -
/ _ / _ / _ / _ / _ _ / _ / _ / 

, I , I , I , I , I , I , I , I 

' 

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

- - - - -- - - -
/ _ / _ / _ / _ / _

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

- - - - -- - - -
/ _ / _ / _ / _ / _

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

·, - ·, Z?', - .
',--,,D--,,-

, . ' 

- ,, - / -- - -- -,- , 
, . 

L
, , 

I , I , I ---

, I , I , I , I , I , I , I , I 

' 

- - - - - - - -- - - - - - -
/ _ / _ / _ / _ / _ _ / _ / _ / 

, I , I , I , I , I , I , I , I 

' 

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

- - - - -- - - -
/ _ / _ / _ / _ / _

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

I , I , I 

I , I , I 

I , I , I 

, I , I , I , I , I , I , I , I 

' 

- - - - - - - -- - - - - - -
/ _ / _ / _ / _ / _ _ / _ / _ / 

, I , I , I , I , I , I , I , I 

' 

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

- - - - -- - - -
/ _ / _ / _ / _ / _

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

, I , I , I , I , I , 

' 

- - - - -- - - -, _ ,, _ / _ / _ / _
, I , I , I , I , I , 

I I I I I 

' 

..... 

I , I , I 

' ' 

6'-6" 

w 

..J z w (!)
z
<((/) a_ W 

0I>-
1- LJ..0-
0 0::: 
�w 
en

> 

- Cl) 
CX) 0::: 
><O - 0�o 

w 

<( 
(!) 
..J z w (!)
z
<( Cl)a_ W

0I>-
1- LJ..0-
0 0::: 
�w 
en

> 

- Cl)
CX) 0:::
><O
- 0�o 

·o--! w >a.
_J a. 
= 0 "<I" 0:::�o 
� 0::: :! w
MO 
�<( ,w 
N I 

6'-6" 

2-2x10
HEADER

CA2640 

CA2640 
2-2x10
HEADER

32'-8"

24'-0"

24'-6"

11 '-6" 6'-6" 

1 '- ' 

2-2x10
HEADER ::'•..; r---

CA2640 -' 

SET BOTTOM OF WINDOWS 
AT 42" OFF MAIN FLOOR. 

ROOF TRUSSES 

AT24"OC 

ROOF TRUSSES 

AT24"OC 

SET BOTTOM OF WINDOWS 
AT 42" OFF MAIN FLOOR. 

11 '-6" 

24'-6"

CA2640 
2-2x10
HEADER

..... 

= 
(X) 

I 

= 
(X) 

I 

N..... 

00 
I 

0 _,..... ..... 

= 0
I 

0..... 

6'-6" 

8'-8" 

5'-0" 3'-8" 

8'-2"

0 
I 

0 
SET BOTTOM OF ..
WDW. AT 42" OFF F 

2-2x10
HEADER

CA2640 

c===Jffi 
wAsH 1u1 DRY 1=s1�N""'K--L - - - .J 

ROUGH IN 

LAUN. 
L.V.ToI] 

MUD 
L.V.P .

I 
(.) 
z w ID 

83'-0" 

17'-4"

4'-8" 8'-0" 

18'-4"

� 6 X 6 L.P. WRAP POST 
en ::::, W/ METAL SCREENS I- z
Cl) Cl) 2 I

(!) WESTBURY ALUMINU Oz a.w 3 (!) 
z RAILING 36" HIGHa_ W <(I (.) MAX 4" SPACING 

c25 
>- = <(0::: � a.s: Cl) ::::, (!) Cl) 

6Cl2.b.b.N POQ. !J. <i! ID z' a, I- I- - "<I"
..J w Cl) ..J � AZEK DECKING 
(0 � � c2 ::i: SCREENS UNDER 
� � 

------------------
LVL HEADER FLUSH 
SIZE BY SUPPLIER 

50'-4" 

33'-0" 

4'-8" 18'-4"

5'-9" 7'-2" 5'-5" 2'-4"

4'-6" 

VERIFY NU ER OF = co 
RISERS IN F ELD 

--+----WEST URY ALUMINUM 
__ ,__ __ RAILI 36" HIGH 

--+----MAX 4 SPACING 

-- ---+-1 '-0"-
SEE ENGINEERING FOR 
WALL FRAMING DESIGN 
AND HEADERS 

' 
s:t 

0 ll----+----11 ,
ll----+------11 L0 

Db.CIL 
AZEK DECKING 

ESCAP 6060 T 

Cl. I
<( a(..) co
<( co(..) ('I)

0 
I 

co 

SET TOP OF 
WINDOWS AT 
6'-8" OFF FLOOR 
R.O. 6'-10" 

= 
..... 
..... ' 
'<3" 

6'-0" FRENCH DOO 
2- 1 3/4" X 9 1/2" L.V.L.
HEADER DROPPED

'-0" FRENCH DOO 0 C12.b..AT Q.OOM 
L.V.P. 00

en 
LU en en u
::::, 0
cc z,,, 
cc ai 
0 � 
g 
LL 
0"' 

2- 1 3/4" X 9 1/2" L.V.L.
HEADER DROPPED

I 

DININC 
Cl) 0::: ::::,w
..J -LJ.. ..J 

L.V.P. a.0::: a. w::::, 0 Cl) 
<( >-
W IDI

W 
..J N 
>-

I 

LO ..... GAS LOG FIREPLACE 
WITH NO HEARTH 
WOOD MANTEL WITH

I 

LO

LEGS. BARNWOOD ABOVE
TO CEILING WITH RETURNS

LO 
I 

s:t 

-- -------------- --------------------------
! 20" FLOOR TRUSSES @ (!), ----- cnz 

14'-8"

12'-4"

7'-2" 5'-2"

14'-0"

WESTBURY ALUMI UM ------11 
RAILING 36" HIGH 
MAX 4" SPACING 

(RO LER CATCHES) 

0 20' FLOOR TRUSSES ' 
0> AT24" OC

E:ib.D r2..M 2 
CARPET 

0 ' 
LO 

_ 2.i L.V.T.
0 

I 

8'-4" 

0 
0 
0 
s: 18'-0"

..J Cl) : AT24"OC <( z I I

: 4'-6" 4'-6" 9'-0" (.) W I I 4'-4"co

4'-6" 

SH&RD 

fil DUCT 
en CHASE en u ::::, 0 
cc

>- z,,, e>AOC
cc m--

� � K.IJC!.lb-N 
L.V.P. 

TILE 
BACKS PLASH 

2-2x10
HEADER

' 
I'
I 

�-J 

5'-1 O" 2'-0"

7'-1 O" 

VERIFY LAYOUT 

,n Wl1H CABINET DRAWINGS 
�3'-10" 8'-0" 3'-11"
0::: 

0 
I 

LO 

12" OVERHANG Cl 
·-------------------•Z

'<C 
'I 
'a:'. 
'LU 
:> •O
I -' -

MICRO .� ' 

ILIT C!Jb.N 
TILE 

= 
0 

BACKSPLASH L.V.P.
SINK 

I 

s:t 

en 
LU enen u
::::, 0
cc z,,,t-
cc ai 
0 � 
g 
LL
0"' 

CA2640 
2-2x10
HEADER

CA2640 
2-2x10
HEADER

�
CA264Q_, 

2-2x10
HEADER

3'-6" 

SET WINDOW SILL TO LINE 
UP WITH COUNTERTOPS 
VERIFY HEIGHT ON SITE 

I '
I'
I 

�-J 

5'-6" 5'-6" 

9'-0" 9'-0" 

18'-0"

83'-0" 

3'-6" 

I! I 
I I 

I 

RAILING 

OPEN TO BELOW 

SET TOP 

M 
I I 

LVL HEADER FLUSH 
SIZE BY SUPPLIER 

I 

s:t 

DUCT-+-
CHASE 

..... 

PAIR 3'-0" ENTRY 
DOORS 

WINDOWS T SEE ENGINEE 
6'-8" OFF F 00� WALL FRAMIN 
R.O. 6'-10" , AND HEADER 

ING FOR 
DESIGN 

' 
1 '-0" - _J

33'-0" 

5'-5" 7'-2" 5'-5" 

18'-0"

58'-6" 

MAIN FLOOR PLAN 1/4" = 1 '-0" 
@ COPYRIGHT BEYOND DESIGN ARCHITECTURE

1902 SQ FT 

''''''
o: 
0:::'oil: I• 
en:'''''

'-4" 

�101 °'I I
0 

co 
I 

= 
0 

00 
I 

I'--

20' FLOOR TRUSSES 

AT24"OC 

OFFICb. 
CARPET 

2- 1 3/4" X 9 1/2" L.V.L.
HEADER DROPPED

ESCAP 6060 T 

1 '-0 

7'-2" 5'-2"

12'-4"

0 0::: 
'<3" oW 
co�□ 
N >< <( 
<( C')J w 
(..)"' I

� 
I 

- _J

TILE SHWR 
JILETO 
CEILING 

0 0::: 
'<3" oWco�□ N >< <( 
<( C')J w 
(..)"' I 

0
I 

C") 

0 
I -.....

..... 

0 
I -..--.....

= 
0

I 

C") 

co 
I -.....

= 0
I 

0 
..... 

= 0
I 

s:t .....

0 0 
I _, 

co '<3"C') 

= 0
I 

s:t .....

= 
0

I 

LO 

ZON/EDHEAT 

THUSFILOOIR 

WINDOW FALL PROTECTION 

ALL OPENABLE WINDOWS THAT 
ARE 72" ABOVE FINISH GRADE 
AND LESS THAN 36" ABOVE 
FINISH FLOOR SHALL NOT PERMIT 
OPENINGS THAT ALLOW 
PASSAGE OF A 4" SPHERE. 

ALL OPENABLE WINDOWS THAT 
ARE 72" ABOVE FINISH GRADE 
AND LESS THAN 36" ABOVE THE 
FLOOR MUST HAVE WINDOW FALL 
PROTECTION DEVICES PER 
ASTM F 2090 AND IRC CODE 
SECTION ( R312.2.2) 

NOTE: ALL CHASES AND 

PENETRATIONS NEED 

FIRE BLOCKING AT 

MAX. 10'-0" OC 

ALL HEADERS UP 

TO 4'-11" SINGLE TRIMMER 

ALL HEADERS OVER 

5'-0" DOUBLE TRIMMER 

UNLESS NOTED 

NOTE: ALL WINDOW AND 
DOOR HEADERS TO BE 
2-2X10 UNLESS NOTED

ALL HEADER SIZES TO BE 

VERIFIED BY BUILDER 

I LUMBER SUPPLIER 

BEFORE CONSTRUCTION 

INDICATES MIN 3-2X6 
SOLID BLOCING 
TO FOUNDATION 

ALL CEILINGS TO HAVE 

KNOCK DOWN FINISH 

UNLESS NOTED 

FRAMING NOTE: 

ALLOW 4" AT ALL 

DOOR AND WINDOW 

OPENINGS FOR 

WIDE CASING 

ALL INTERIOR DOORS 

ARE 6'-8" TALL 

UNLESS NOTED 

10
1

0
11 

CEILING HGT. 

THIS FLOOR 

UNLESS NOTED 

PLAN NUMBER 

22-041

DATE 

6-28-2022

REVISIONS 

7-22-2022

ci 
0LJ..
w 
(.) z w 
0 
en w 
0::: 

>-
ID 
I-
..J
::::, ID 

612-597-4269

SHEET

3oF9 

'6
" 

I 0 
=

 

.....
 

',
 ' 

. 

',
 

',
 

' 

2
'-0

" 
' ',

 
' 

-
',

 

',
 

',
 

',
 

1 
I
l
l
 

,'
l,

.~
m

 
0 0

)
 

0 -I
 

E
x

ce
ll

en
ce

 f
ro

m
 e

v
e
ry

 a
n

g
le

 

',
 

' , 

-
',

 

' , ' 

-

',
 

',
 

' ,
 
44

'-0
" 

X
 3

0'
-0

" 
' ,

 
C

O
N

C
 D

R
IV

E
 

' ',
 

' ' ',
 

',
 R

A
G

 A
T 

',
 

',
 

',
 

',
 

',
 

~
 
. 

... 
\ 

, . 
• 

\ 
I 

" 

ll
 

f 

4
4

'-
0

" 

2
0

'-
0

" 

',
 l>
 ~ lf
l 

.2
' 

g:
__

J 
R

A
IL

IN
G

 

lf
l z
. 

~~
 

"U
 

. 
I 

' 

2'
-1

 0
" 

. 
' 

,,
 0

)
 

C
, 

=
 

::;
 C

J 
"
0

 
ili 

O
 

-'9
 ;

o
 

C
l)

 

I ' J 'I
 

C
U

S
T

O
M

 
H

O
M

E
S

 

',
 

""
"'

 
I 

I 

',
 

',
 

' , 

-

' 
' 

, 

',
 

',
 

' 

' 
' 

' 
1

2
'-0

" 
',

 

' ',
 

',
 

',
 

G
A

R
A

G
 

2
-

1 
3/

4"
 X

 1
4"

 L
.V

.L
. 

H
E

A
D

E
R

 D
R

O
P

P
E

D
 

T
 

A
T 

2
-8

 C
A

S
E

D
 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 

" 

',
 

',
 

',
 

' ' ',
 

',
 

',
 

7'
 

m
 

=
 8 0 0l 
l " 

0
)
 

0 0
)
 

0 -I
 

0
)
 ,- 0 

=
 

C
l)

 
r CJ

 

PI
T

Z
E

N
B

E
R

G
E

R
 I
l
\
l
 

rn
 

' 
►
~
 

or
e 

[T
I.

I>
, 

;o
 

=
 

o
x
 

;o
 <

O
 

a
~

 
"U

;;
, 

"U
 

=
 

rn
: 

o:
< : .....

 

I I 

" 

- ... 

House to Garage Door
Opening
Protection
1. Solid wood door not less
than 1 3/8"
thick.
2. Solid or honey comb core
steel
doors not less than 1 3/8" thick.
3. 20 minute fire-rated door.

SD

SD/CO F

45

bsatek
Pencil

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Pencil

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight

bsatek
Highlight




